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CITY OF

stillwater

December 2, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor Nathan Bates, members of the City Council and the Citizens of the City of
Stillwater, Oklahoma:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Stillwater, for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011, is submitted herewith. This report was prepared by the City’s Department of Finance.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. We believe the data, as presented, is accurate
in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position
and results of operations of the City in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; and, accordingly, all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain the
maximum understanding of the City’s financial affairs have been included. We encourage readers to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

OVERVIEW
Report Format

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 implements a model of financial
reporting for state and local governments designed to enhance the usefulness of the City’s annual report.
This report conforms to the standards prescribed in Statement No. 34 as modified by subsequent GASB
statements.

For fiscal year 2011, the independent accountants’ report on the internal control and compliance with
applicable laws, is presented in a separate document which is available upon request.

Governmental Structure, Local Economic Conditions and Outlook

The City of Stillwater, located in north central Oklahoma is a municipal corporation organized in 1891
under the applicable laws of the State of Oklahoma. The City currently has a land area of 28 square
miles and a population of over 40,000. Located in Payne County, the City serves as a regional center for
shopping, entertainment, health care, and education. Stillwater is home to Oklahoma State University.

The City is governed under the council-manager form of government according to its charter adopted in
1960. Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in the governing body, which consists of a five-
member council. The five councilors, including the mayor, are elected at-large on a non-partisan basis
for staggered three-year terms. The mayor is elected at large by the citizenry while the vice-mayor is
elected by the council from its membership. The council holds regular meetings on the first and third
Monday evenings each month. The council schedules work session meetings on the fourth Monday of
each month.

The economic outlook for the City of Stillwater and its residents is one of cautious optimism. Even with
the recession, this area of the country has faired better than most. Stillwater’s economy lagged behind
the downturn and the recovery will lag respectively. The City has a diverse economy with a high degree
of stability. Stillwater is the county seat for Payne County and houses other governmental entities and
educational centers that provide a stable labor force. Oklahoma State University is the City’s largest
employer and the City is also the headquarters for the Oklahoma Department of Career and Technology



Education and the Meridian Technology Center. Employment in the state and local government sectors
account for approximately 45% of local wage and salary jobs. In addition manufacturing and advanced
technology companies cover a large share of the local economic base. The health care sector has been a
contributor to local job growth in the past decade. In 2008 and 2009, Stillwater experienced significant
retail growth with the addition of several national retailers. The retail additions have helped to broaden
the city’s regional trade influence. Going forward into the recovery it is expected to have a positive effect
on Stillwater’s economy by helping to retain local dollars and contributing to the sales tax collections.

Stillwater’s cost of living remains well below the state and U.S. average. Unemployment is consistently
among the lowest in the U.S. for Stillwater and the surrounding county. The unemployment rate for
Stillwater increased slightly to 5.9% from 5.8% in the prior year.

The Reporting Entity and Its Services

The City’s financial reporting entity includes all the funds of the primary government (i.e., the City of
Stillwater as legally defined), as well as all of its component units. Component units are legally separate
entities for which the primary government is financially accountable. The City provides the full range of
municipal services contemplated by the City Charter. These include public safety (police, fire and civil
defense), general government functions, recreation and culture, streets and sewers, human services,
sanitation, airport and public improvement.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are in substance part of the primary
government’s operations and are included as part of the primary government. Accordingly, the Stillwater
Utilities Authority (SUA), Stillwater Industrial and Redevelopment Authority (SIRA) and the Stillwater
Public Works Authority (SPWA) are reported as two enterprise funds and an internal service fund,
respectively, of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the
primary government and to differentiate their financial position, results of operations and cash flows
from those of the primary government. The Stillwater Medical Center Authority is reported as a
discretely presented proprietary component unit. The Stillwater Convention and Visitors Bureau is
reported as a discretely presented governmental component unit. The reporting entity is described in
Note 1 to the combined financial statements in the financial section of this report.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls

The responsibility for establishing and maintaining the internal control structure rests with the City. In
developing and evaluating the City’s accounting system, consideration is given to the adequacy of
internal accounting controls, Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance regarding: (1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requiring estimates and judgments by
management.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City’s internal
accounting controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of
financial transactions.

Budgetary Control

The administrative level of budgetary control is maintained at the character classification level by the
encumbrance of estimated purchase amounts prior to the release of purchase orders to vendors. The legal
level of control at which expenditures and encumbrances may not exceed appropriations is at the
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category levels for personal services, materials and supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay
and debt service for each department within each fund. The method of budget adoption and amendment
process is described in Note 1 to the financial statements in the financial section of this report.

Accounting System

The diverse nature of governmental operations and the necessity of complying with legal provisions
require an accounting system unlike those used by commercial enterprises. Rather than establishing a
single unified set of accounts for recording and summarizing all financial transactions, the accounts of
the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which constitutes a separate accounting entity. The
funds used by the City are grouped into the following broad fund types:

Governmental Funds: These funds are used to account for the programs and activities of the
governmental functions of the City and are comprised of the following:

General Fund: This fund serves as the main operating fund of the City. It is used for
recording all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

Special Revenue Funds: These funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Capital Project Funds: These funds are used to account for financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Debt Service Fund: This fund is used to account for the accumulation of financial
resources for payment of interest and principle debt and court-assessed judgments.

Proprietary Funds: These funds are used to account for ongoing organizations and activities that are
similar to those found in the private sector and are comprised of the following:

Enterprise Funds: These funds are used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that costs
of providing goods or services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges.

Internal Service Fund: This fund is used to account for services and/or commodities
furnished by a designated program to other programs within the City, on a cost
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Fund: This fund is used to administer resources received and held by a governmental unit as
the trustee or as the agent for others. Use of this fund facilitates the discharge of responsibilities placed
upon the governmental unit by virtue of law or other similar authority.

General Fund Operations

The General Fund accounts for all revenues and expenditures, which are not accounted for in other funds.
It finances the traditional governmental functions and is the principal operating fund of the City. Police,
Fire, Parks, Events and Recreation, Library, Community Center, Administration, and Development
Services are all activities reported in the general fund.

Enterprise Fund Operations & Similar Component Units

The SUA, the Airport Fund, and the SIRA are classified as Enterprise Funds for reporting purposes.
Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprise where the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing goods or
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user



charges and/or a determination of net income is desirable. Services accounted for in Enterprise Funds are
tangible, and it is possible to determine the extent to which they benefit individual service consumers.

Risk Management

In 1986, the City Council directed that the City initiate a self-insurance program for the vehicle liability,
general liability, and City property damage coverage. This action was initiated due to the City’s low loss
experience compared to high premiums and lower coverage offered by conventional and pooled
insurance plans. The first full year of operation for the City’s self-insurance program was fiscal year
1987-88.

The City had been self-insured for workers compensation and unemployment compensation coverage
prior to the decision to implement a self-insurance program. To create a self-insurance fund for the City,
the workers compensation and unemployment compensation funds were combined with the funds
budgeted in the 1987 fiscal year for insurance premiums. Within this fund, accounts were created for the
different types of losses the City could anticipate. Expenditures from the fund are determined by claims
filed with the City during the year and approved for payment. Payment of claims $10,000 and over
require City Council approval. Payments of claims under $10,000 require City Manager approval.

The health benefit program for employees is self-funded using a third party administrator with the city
maintaining stop loss coverage. Traditional property insurance is maintained on the city hall and library.
Excess property coverage is maintained on the water utility as required by the bond indenture. Coverage
for airport liability and hangar keeper’s liability was added in 1995. In 1997, an excess liability program
was established with the city continuing to administer claims. Coverage includes general liability,
employee benefits liability, law enforcement liability, public entity management, EMT, and commercial
auto.

The City has several policies and procedures regarding safety training of employees, hazardous material
communications, accident reporting and investigation, and medical assistance. The City intends to limit
their risk exposure through stringent enforcement of these policies.

Cash Management

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for maintaining the City’s investment portfolio and providing
oversight for bond proceeds held by trustees. The City generally combines unrestricted cash for
investment purposes. Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested in time deposits and U.S.
Treasury Bills. The City, SUA and SPWA use interest bearing NOW checking accounts and higher
yielding money market accounts as provided under Public Law 97-320 (sec.327). The City’s cash is
deposited daily. Deposits are insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized.

Reserve Policy

The City has implemented a policy designed to add to the emergency reserves. This policy is an informal
budgetary policy utilized at the direction of the City Manager with council agreement. The policy allows
for the reserve to increase by the area’s CPI index or 3% or whichever is greater on an annual basis as
funds are available.

American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009
The city actively pursued funds available from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009

(ARRA). The city was able to complete a $5.8 million runway expansion at the airport in fiscal year
2009 and secured funds for $13.5 million in water and wastewater projects which began in fiscal year



2009-10 and continued in 2010-11. The last phase of the automated meter project should be completed
in 2012.

Independent Audit

The Oklahoma State Statutes and City Charter require an annual audit by certified public accountants or
qualified independent public accountants. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the federal Single Audit Act of 1984, as
amended in 1996, and related OMB circular A-133 and “Government Auditing Standards” issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. The independent certified public accountants that performed
the audit were selected by the City Council.

The City’s Audit Committee is a five-member advisory committee provided for under City Ordinance
#1929. Under the provisions of the ordinance, the City Council appoints the committee. The purpose of
the Audit Committee is to maintain independence between the outside auditors and city management.
The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and evaluate the year-end financial
statements and independent accountants’ report, review and report deficiencies in internal control,
oversee the audit function and to report to the City Council as required. The independent accountants’
report on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and schedules is
included in the financial section of this report. The independent accountants’ reports related specifically
to the Single Audit are included in a separately bound Single Audit supplement.

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Stillwater for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports. In order to be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, the City published an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report. This report satisfied both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Stillwater has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last twenty-nine consecutive years. We believe that our current report
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program requirements and we are submitting it to the
GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgments. The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the dedicated
services of the entire Department of Finance staff, with special thanks to Tammy Brown and Christy
Cluck and the professional assistance of the City’s independent accountants, John M. Arledge &
Associates, P.C. In addition, thanks are extended to the members of the Audit Committee for their
review and oversight of the audit process and to the members of the City Council for their interest and
support in strengthening and improving the fiscal policies of the City of Stillwater.

The City will strive to continue to provide its citizens with quality services, management and financial
reporting,

Respectfully submitted,

= Wa,wu, (Mosandon
Dan Galloway / Marcy Alexander
City Manager Director of Finance
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| Arledge

& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAM TS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the
City of Stillwater, Oklahoma

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Stillwater, Oklahoma (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011,
which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the Stillwater Medical Center
Authority which the City reports as a discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were
audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates
to the amounts included for the Stillwater Medical Center Authority, is based on the report of the other
" auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Stillwater, Oklahoma, as of June 30, 2011, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 1,
2011, on our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

309 N. Bryant Ave. * Edmond, OK 73034 - 405.348.0615 - Fax 405.348.0931 - www.jmacpas.com
Member of AICPA and OSCPA



Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the pension plan and other post-
employment benefits funding schedules, as listed in the Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City's financial statements as a whole. The introductory section, other supplementary
information, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. The other supplemental information, as listed in the Table of
Contents, is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections, as listed in the Table of
Contents, have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Edmond, Ok aﬁom‘a
December 1,2011
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011

As management of the City of Stillwater, we offer readers this narrative overview and
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Stillwater for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2011. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal.

Using the Financial Statement in this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The financial statements
presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Stillwater (the “City”), the
Stillwater Utilities Authority (the “SUA) and other component units. The Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the
City as a whole, including the SUA and component units, and present a longer-term view
of the City’s finances. Included in this report are government-wide statements for each
of two categories of activities — governmental and business-type, along with two
discretely-presented component units.

The government-wide financial statements present the complete financial picture of the
City from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of
accounting. They present governmental activities and business-type activities separately
and combined. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were
financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. These statements
include all assets of the City, including infrastructure, as well as all liabilities, including
long-term debt. Fund financial statements also report the City’s operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City’s most
significant funds.

Reporting the City as a Whole — Statements of Net Assets and Activities

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of
Stillwater’s basic financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way
that helps answer questions. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken
into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two statements report the
City’s net assets and changes in them from the prior year. The City’s net assets — the
difference between assets and liabilities — is one way to measure the City’s financial
condition or position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are
indicators of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, other
non-financial factors must be considered, such as changes in the City’s property tax base
and the condition of the City’s roads, to assess the overall health of the City.
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As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we
divide the City into three kinds of activities:

Governmental activities — Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including
the police, fire, administration, streets and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and
state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities — The City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of
the cost of certain services it provides. The City’s electric, water, sewer and sanitation
utilities are reported here, along with the airport.

Discretely-presented component units — The City’s report has two discretely presented
component units, the Stillwater Medical Authority and the Stillwater Convention and
Visitors Bureau. Although they are legally separate entities, these “component units” are
important because the City is financially accountable for them in some way. The
Stillwater Medical Authority is a public trust of the City and the City is the beneficiary of
the trust. The Stillwater Convention and Visitors Bureau receive the proceeds of the
City’s Hotel/Motel tax to provide economic development by encouraging tourists and
conventions to select Stillwater as a destination.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds — Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Stillwater, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Some funds are required to be
established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management establishes
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show
that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money.
All of the funds of the City of Stillwater can be divided into two -categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds — Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental
funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left
at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-term view of the City’s general government operations and the basic
service it provides. Governmental fund information helps determine whether there are
more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’s
programs. The differences of results in the Governmental Fund financial statements to
those in the Government-Wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation
following each Governmental Fund financial statement.

The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $1,750,954 due to increased sales tax and
the sale of a city owned building in the Business Improvement District #1.

The Transportation Fund receives a transfer from the general fund of a 4 percent sales
tax dedicated for transportation improvements. The Transportation Fund balance
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increased by $2,582,661due to a decrease in project activity and additional sales tax
revenue over the prior year.

Proprietary fund — When the City charges customers for the services it provides- whether
to outside customers or to other units of the City — these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are
reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Assets. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds, along with certain
capital project funds, are the same as the business-type activities reported in the
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as
cash flows. Net assets of the Stillwater Utilities Authority (SUA) have increased by $9.5
million or 9.03%. Rate increases were implemented for electric, water, wastewater, solid
waste collection and street sweeping. Operating revenues increased by $4.8 million or
8.62%. Operating Expenditures increased by $3.82 million or 8.58%. Transfers to the
city’s general fund were reduced by $5.4 million.

The City as Trustee

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary for other assets that — because of a trust arrangement
— can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. All of the City’s fiduciary activities are
reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Assets and Changes in Fiduciary Net
Assets. These activities are excluded from the City’s other financial statements because
the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for their intended purposes.

The City as a Whole

For the year ended June 30, 2011, net assets for the governmental activities and business-
type activities changed as follows:

The City of Stillwater's Net Assets
(expressed in $ 000's)

Govemmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total
Beginning net assets $ 96,368 $ 119,794 § 216,162
Increase/(Decrease) 381 9,263 9,644
Ending net assets $ 96,749 $ 129,057 $ 225,806

The above numbers reflect an increase of .39% in net assets for governmental activities
and an increase of 7.17% in net assets for business-type activities. Overall, the net assets
for both governmental and business type activities increased 4.27% for this fiscal year.

The following is a summary comparison of the change in net assets from last year for the
City of Stillwater.
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The City of Stillwater's Net Assets
(expressed in $ 000's)

Govemmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets:
Current and other assets $19,794 $ 17,403 $ 52,946 $ 40,375 $ 72740 $ 57,778
Capital assets 92,647 96,710 117,230 115,071 209,877 211,781
Total assets 112,441 114,113 170,176 155,446 282,617 269,559
Liabilities:
Long-term liabilities 11,991 12,396 28,632 30,221 40,623 42,617
Other liabilities 3,701 5,348 12,487 5,431 16,188 10,779
Total liabilities 15,692 17,744 41,119 35,652 56,811 53,396
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets 84,399 87,624 92,794 92,324 177,193 179,948
Restricted 14,005 5,207 7,630 2,443 21,635 7,650
Unrestricted (1,655) 3,537 28,633 25,026 26,978 28,563
Total net assets $96,749 $ 96,368 $ 129,057 $119,793 $ 225,806 $ 216,161

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Stillwater is able to report positive
balances in net assets for the governmental activities and business-type activities as well
as for the city as a whole.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets, 78.47 percent, reflects its investment in
capital assets, less any related debt used to acquire those assets to provide services to
citizens. Capital assets are items such as land, buildings, machinery and equipment, and
infrastructure.  Consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the City’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Net accounts receivable decreased 57% from the prior year. The allowance for doubtful
accounts in the general fund includes municipal court fines and ambulance accounts that
are deemed to be uncollectable. On May 1, 2011, the City discontinued its operation of
the ambulance service and has received final billing information from a third party biller.
Due to the age of many of the accounts and the incompleteness of some of the records,
the allowance for uncollectable ambulance accounts was increased by 42% or $497,803.
Subsequent to may 1, 2011, the City’s ambulance service is outsourced to the Western
Payne County Ambulance Trust Authority (WPCATA). Although the City no longer
provides ambulance service, we will still pursue the collection of the outstanding
accounts prior to May 1st. to the fullest extent possible.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets, 9.58 percent, represents resources that are
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.
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Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City of Stillwater’s net assets by $380,888 which
contributed to a .18% increase of the net assets of the City of Stillwater. The following
provides details of the increase:
The City of Stillwater's Statement of Activities
(expressed in $ 000's)

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010

Revenues:
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 4124 $ 4,981 $62,644 $57,825 $66,768 $62,80t

Operating Grants & contributions 178 130 - - 178 130

Capital grants & contributions 785 1,172 2,507 7,884 3,292 9,056
General revenues:

Sales taxes 24389 23,410 - 24389 23,410

Other taxes 3,624 3,548 - 3,624 3,548

Other general revenues 105 29 278 175 383 204

Total Revenues 33,205 33,270 65,429 65,884 98,634 99,154

Program Expenses:

General Government 3,750 4,290 3,750 4,290

Financial Administration 628 732 628 732

Public Safety 16,701 17,561 16,701 17,561

Streets & Sewers 7,485 6,780 7,485 6,780

Engineering and Public Works Administration 569 554 569 554

Recreation and Culture 6,134 5,989 6,134 5,989

Economic Development 423 481 423 481

Health and Welfare 1,535 1,793 1,535 1,793

Interest on Long-term Debt 271 463 271 463

Stillwater Utilities Authority 49,122 45446 49,122 45,448

Stillwater Public Golf Authority - 400 - 400

Business Area Development 240 203 240 203

Airport Operations 2,132 1,885 2,132 1,885

Total Expenses 37,496 38,643 51,494 47,934 88,990 86,577

Increase/(Decrease) in Net Assets Before

Transfers 4,201y  (5,373) 13,935 65,884 0,644 12,577
Net Transfers 4672 11,635 - (4,672) (11,635) - -
Increasel/(Decrease) in Net Assets $ 381 $§ 6,262 $ 9,263 $54,249 $ 9644 $12577

Sales and use tax received in fiscal year 2011 resulted in a increase from the prior year of
$978,938. Transfers from the SUA to the general fund decreased $5,422,665. Property
taxes increased $71,238. Investment income increased by $69,451. Net assets for
governmental activities increased by .39%.
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Business-type Activities

Business-type activities increased the City of Stillwater’s net assets by $9,263,355 which
contributed a 4.29% increase in the net assets of the City of Stillwater. Details are
presented in the preceding chart. Rate increases enacted for all utility services
contributed to a $4,858,181 increase in charges for services in the business-type
activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

In fiscal year 2009-10 sales tax revenues continued a significant decline which made it
necessary to institute mid-year cost cutting measures. The original adopted budget was
extremely conservative with few authorized capital expenditures, no cost of living
increases. It became necessary for management to initiate further reductions in the
budget by not filling vacant positions, reducing travel and training expenditures and
cancelling various capital expenditure authorizations that had not yet been initiated. Cost
cutting across the board for all city activities reduced the amount of funds that were
transferred out by the General Fund to support those services. The City Council
approved a budget revision in April 2010 to meet an approximate $1 million shortfall in
the general fund.

The budget for 2010-11 was prepared with further cost cutting. There were minimal
capital items approved. Vacant positions were eliminated or unfilled and no cost of living
increases were approved. In addition employee compensation was frozen for the year at
fiscal 2010 levels. Increases in employee contributions for health insurance were
implemented in order to maintain the level of insurance and wellness benefits for
employees.

The adopted revenue budget was prepared with no expectation of significant revenue
increase beyond that received in fiscal 2009-10. The adopted expenditure budget
reflected a decrease from the prior year original budget of 8.6%.

Budget preparation has been a challenge for the past three fiscal years as national
economic conditions made their impact locally. Significant cost reductions have been
made but at the same time it did not become necessary to use emergency reserves to fund
the shortfalls. Careful examination of resources and service levels has poised the City to
be more efficient as the recovery slowly begins. Although fiscal year 2010-11 revenues
did not present any significant revenue growth and are still behind the level of fiscal
2008-09, it appears that revenues have stabilized. Cost increases for materials have
continued to increase and management will have to continue to find ways to become
more efficient in the delivery of services to preserve the health of the general fund.

Capital Asset & Debt Administration

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets and debt administration for
FY2011. More detailed information on capital asset activity and long-term debt activity
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is contained in the accompanying notes to the financial statements on pages 50 and 51

and pages 53 to 59, respectively.

Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2011, the City had $191.3 million invested in capital assets
including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, water and sewer lines,
electric systems and roads.

Land

Buildings

Other Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Intangible Assets

Construction-in-progress

Less Depreciation

Totals

Debt Administration

At year-end, the City had $41.5 million in long term debt.
detailed below as follows:

General Obligation Bonds
Capital Lease Obligations

Notes Payable
Revenue Bonds

Refundable Grant Obligations

Totals

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 7312 § 7354 $§ 1,715 $ 1673 § 9,027 $ 9,027
24,152 24,811 9,987 9,010 34,139 33,821
- - 25,249 20,264 25,249 20,264
20,614 20,619 2,659 2,074 23,273 22,693
150,858 137,836 176,094 170,317 326,952 308,153
- - 74 74 74 74
1,720 11,798 7,692 12,676 9,412 24474
204,656 202,418 223,470 216,088 428,126 418,506
112,009 105,708 124,773 119,349 236,782 225057
$ 92647 $ 96,710 $ 98,697 $ 96,739 § 191,344 193,449
These debts are further
The City of Stillwater's Long-term Debt
(expressed in $000's)
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$ 8,248 § 9,086 $ - $ - $ 8248 § 9,086
- - 2,128 1,904 2,128 1,904
- - 26,067 17,915 26,067 17,915
- - 4,878 7,989 4,878 7,989
239 281 15 171 254 452
$ 8,487 $ 9,367 $33,088 $ 27,979 $ 415675 $ 37,346
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

With costs continuing to rise and total revenues still below the FY 2009 level, the budget
approach for 2011-12 was to prepare for the “new normal”. The City has provided a
wide array of services to the citizens for many years and there is a commitment to
continue to do so.

The focus of the budget for 2011-12 is to ensure sufficient allocation of resources to fully
maintain core services related to the health, safety, and well-being of citizens and visitors.
Providing water, sewer, solid waste management, electricity and public safety are quickly
identified among those critical services. Extensive efforts to consolidate operations,
share resources and restructure staffing have made it possible to maintain all other
services, but in a different format. Operational hours, extent of services and fees may be
different, but every effort has been made to assure that the needs do not go unmet.

While the economic recovery is not sufficient to return all departments of the City to pre-
2009 staffing levels, there are no calculated lay-offs or furloughs included in the budget.
Some positions will be phased out or reorganized through attrition. Although no cost of
living increase is included, the freeze on service step increases has been removed. After
severely restricting capital expenditures for the past three years, the fiscal year 2012
budget includes the replacement of several police cars, a fire department rescue unit,
street maintenance equipment and needed critical equipment across the utilities
operations. It should be noted that there are still a significant amount of capital
equipment needs that continue to exist and this will put pressure on future budgets to
regain stability. Future needs will be addressed in the capital improvement planning
process. Rate increases in water and sewer rates will be dedicated to infrastructure repair,
replacement and/or upgrade consistent with the Water/Sewer Capital Improvement Plan.

The Mercruiser plant is scheduled for the final phase of closing in November 2011.
Mercruiser will move the Stillwater operations to Fond du Lac, Wisconsin. After initial
layoffs of over a hundred casting and machining positions, the company announced an
additional 200 assembly jobs to be transferred in late 2010 and 2011. The plant
employed approximately 400 people prior to the announcement. The company has said
it will sell the 700,000 square foot facility after the plant closing.

There are several positive initiatives happening locally. The City’s first Business
Improvement District has welcomed more than 25 new businesses to Stillwater’s
downtown since its creation in December 2007. Several established businesses have
improved their facades and some have relocated to the district. Several incentives have
been created to encourage business growth within the district. The goals of the district
are to: 1) Increase business activity within the district, which will result in economic
growth for the area. 2) Become a destination place for Stillwater residents and visitors.
3) Establish Downtown Stillwater as the premier business, cultural and entertainment
destination in Oklahoma.
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Oklahoma State University has planned expansion projects representing over $800
million dollars as part of the university’s Master Plan 2025 generating a $1.2 billion
economic impact on the Stillwater area. The Henry Bellmon Research Center Building is
slated for completion in the fall of 2011. Extensive renovations are underway on the
Student Union and should be completed by Spring of 2012.

OSU continues to excel in the academic arena making the university attractive to students
and faculty. Fall enrollment for 2011 is 24,231 and is the largest in OSU history. The
freshman class enrollment represents a ten percent increase over last year. The freshman
class has an ACT score of 25.1 and has a record number of 4.0 GPA students. OSU has
once again been included as one of the best values in public colleges and universities by
Kiplinger’s Personal Finance magazine. In February of 2010, Oklahoma State President
V. Burns Hargis announced the launch of “Branding Success: The Campaign for
Oklahoma State University”. The campaign goal is to raise $1 billion to fund
scholarships, faculty positions, research programs and facilities. The program currently
has reached $819 million committed to the campaign. Oklahoma State Alumnus and
Philanthropist T. Boone Pickens announced he would provide a $100 million
testamentary challenge gift to fund a major endowment for scholarships. The target date
for the campaign is December 31, 2014.

Commercial building permits have increased slightly while single family home building
has slowed. There were 80 commercial permits issued in calendar year 2010 and 88 had
been issued in the current year at the time of this report. There were 102 single family
residential permits issued in calendar year 2010 and 50 so far in 2011. Residential
properties have kept their value in the local market.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and
creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s
accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, contact the Finance Department at 723 S. Lewis, P.O.
Box 1449, Stillwater, Oklahoma or phone at (405) 372-0025.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2011
Primary Government Component Units
Stillwater
Convention
Governmental Business-type Stillwater Medical and Visitors
Activities Activities Total Center Authority Bureau
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,737,868 $ 14,799,974 § 29,537,842 § 14,898,090 § 59,773
Investments - 15,180,156 15,180,156 20,647,388 -
Accounts receivable, net 573,306 9,484,830 10,058,136 9,929,422 -
Internal balances (86,486) 86,486 - - -
Interest receivable - 68,884 68,884 - -
Installment loans receivable 57,500 4,038 61,538 - -
Leasehold receivable - 239,442 239,442 - -
Inventories 163,741 4,897,864 5,061,605 1,894,823 -
Due from other governments 4,220,612 70,642 4,291,254 - -
Other assets - - - 1,082,658 -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 8,840,323 8,840,323 919,461 -
Restricted investments - - - 1,718,731 -
Capital assets: -
Land and construction in progress 9,031,737 9,406,336 18,438,073 4,817,147 -
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 83,615,362 106,434,684 190,050,046 35,038,790 -
Investments in joint ventures - - - 2,318,119 -
Goodwill, net - - - 5,434,776 -
Other assets - - - 94,619 -
Unamortized debt issuance costs 127,468 331,254 458,722 348,542 -
Total assets 112,441,108 169,844,913 282,286,021 99,142,566 59,773
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,257,525 4,606,122 5,863,647 2,217,739 59,773
Accrued liabilities 2,417,883 373,035 2,790,918 5,971,585 -
Accrued interest payable 25,383 201,695 227,078 - -
Unearned revenue - 6,347 6,347 - -
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year 874,376 7,174,379 8,048,755 1,455,218 -
Due in more than one year 9,593,436 27,824,594 37,418,030 15,127,818 -
Other post employment benefits obligations 1,523,294 601,970 2,125,264 - -
Total liabilities 15,691,897 40,788,142 56,480,039 24,772,360 59,773
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net
of related debt 84,399,362 92,794,475 177,193,837 23,660,452 -
Restricted for:
Capital projects 6,633,915 5,017,007 11,650,922 - -
Debt service 384,409 2,609,803 2,994,212 2,573,731 -
Street improvements 5,964,692 - 5,964,692 - -
Specific operating activities 1,022,401 2,712 1,025,113 460,414 -
Nonexpendable operating activities - - - 1,173,827 -
Unrestricted (1,655,568) 28,632,774 26,977,206 46,501,782 -
Total net assets $ 96,749,211 $ 129,056,771 $ 225,805,982 $ 74,370,206 $ -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Other Total
Transportation Governmental Governmental
General Improvement Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,407,972 $ 5992515 $ 1,149,650 $ 14,550,137
Due from other governments 4,175,646 - 44,966 4,220,612
Accounts receivable, net of
uncollectable accounts of $2,274,261 562,363 9,796 1,147 573,306
Due from other funds 94,248 - - 94,248
Inventories 163,741 - - 163,741
Total assets $ 12,403,970 $ 6,002,311 $ 1,195,763 19,602,044
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,227,600 $ 26,160 $ 3,765 $ 1,257,525
Accrued liabilities 1,134,433 8,929 - 1,143,362
Due to other funds 417,646 2,530 - 420,176
Deferred revenue 162,169 - 36,998 199,167
Total liabilities 2,941,848 37,619 40,763 3,020,230
FUND BALANCES
Non-spendable: inventories 163,741 - - 163,741
Restricted for:
Debt service - - 384,409 384,409
Public safety 100,713 - - 100,713
Capital improvements - 5,964,692 669,223 6,633,915
Sales tax transfer 1,654,153 - - 1,654,153
Committed to:
Public safety 522,274 - - 522,274
Economic development 235,673 - - 235,673
Assigned to:
Self insurance 828,670 - - 828,670
Recreation and culture 150,445 - - 150,445
Unassigned 5,806,453 - 101,368 5,907,821
Total fund balances 9,462,122 5,964,692 1,155,000 16,581,814
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 12,403,970 $ 6,002,311 $ 1,195,763
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not
report in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation of $112,009,146 92,647,099
Certain long-term receivables are not available to pay for current fund liabilities and, therefore, are
deferred in the funds 199,167

continued



Installment note receivable received for sale of asset is not reported in the fund statements

Unamortized debt issuance costs are part of net proceeds reported in fund statements

Internal Service fund assets and liabilities are reported in the proprietary fund in the fund
financial statements but are included in government activities in the Statement of Net Assets

Certain long-term liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources and,
therefore are not reported in the funds:
Accrued workers' compensation claims
Accrued interest payable
General obligation bonds payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued post employment obligations

Net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

REVENUES
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeits
Fees and rentals
Investment income
Licenses and permits
Other miscellaneous revenues

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current
Public safety
Recreation and culture
General government
Financial administration
Streets and sewers
Operations
Economic development
Human services

Debt service:
Principal retirements
Interest and fiscal charges

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Proceeds from sale of assets
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

FUND BALANCES, beginning, restated

FUND BALANCES, ending

Other Totals
Transportation Governmental Governmental
General Improvement Funds Funds
$ 26,564,838 $ - $ 1,459,560 $ 28,024,398
736,264 - 226,872 963,136
1,449,277 - - 1,449,277
656,201 - - 656,201
1,466,352 - - 1,466,352
56,709 42,491 4,975 104,175
187,563 - - 187,563
774,883 15 5,000 779,898
31,892,087 42,506 1,696,407 33,631,000
16,420,643 - - 16,420,643
5,462,488 - 10 5,462,498
2,837,873 - - 2,837,873
600,203 - - 600,203
2,093,451 287,019 - 2,380,470
589,376 - - 589,376
422,624 - - 422,624
1,347,642 - 88,857 1,436,499
- - 775,000 775,000
- - 385,408 385,408
1,408,639 1,644,172 344,547 3,397,358
31,182,939 1,931,191 1,593,822 34,707,952
709,148 (1,888,685) 102,585 (1,076,952)
575,655 - - 575,655
10,685,126 6,117,321 - 16,802,447
(10,218,975) (1,645,975) (160,402) (12,025,352)
1,041,806 4,471,346 (160,402) 5,352,750
1,750,954 2,582,661 (57,817) 4,275,798
7,711,168 3,382,031 1,212,817 12,306,016
$ 9,462,122 $ 5,964,692 $ 1,155,000 $ 16,581,814




Reconciliation to Statement of Activities:
Net change in fund balances $ 4,275,798
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets.

Capital asset purchases 3,410,958
Donated capital assets 4,500
Assets transferred from proprietary funds 78,850
Assets transferred to proprietary funds (184,136)
Asset disposals (621,677)
Depreciation expense (6,750,961)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Deferred revenue (426,192)
Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in the governemental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets 775,000
Internal Service Fund revenue 501
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Amortization of gain on refunding (12,736)
Accrued interest payable 114,155
Accrued compensated absences (14,934)
Accrued workers' compensation claims 191,553
Accrued post employment benefits (459,791)
Change in net assets-governmental activities $ 380,888

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS- PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Stillwater Non Major Activities-
Utilities Enterprise Internal
Authority Funds Totals Service Funds
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,457,014 $ 342,960 $ 14,799,974 $ 187,731
Investments 15,180,156 - 15,180,156 -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,058,258 - 8,058,258 -

Accounts receivable, net of allowance

for uncollectible accounts of $226,545 9,484,016 814 9,484,830 -
Due from other funds 411,298 6,348 417,646 -

Advances to other funds - - - 34,442
Interest receivable 68,884 - 68,884 -
Installment loans receivable - 4,038 4,038 -
Leasehold receivable - 34,442 34,442 -
Inventories 4,754,225 143,639 4,897,864 -

Total current assets 52,413,851 532,241 52,946,092 222,173

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Advances to other funds - - - 205,000

Leasehold receivable - 205,000 205,000 -
Restricted assets:

Cash and equivalents 782,065 - 782,065 -
Due from other governments - 70,642 70,642 -
Capital assets, non depreciable 7,940,818 1,465,518 9,406,336 -
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 94,557,979 11,876,705 106,434,684 -
Unamortized debt issuance costs 331,254 - 331,254 -

Total noncurrent assets 103,612,116 13,617,865 117,229,981 205,000
Total assets 156,025,967 14,150,106 170,176,073 427,173
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 4,587,150 18,972 4,606,122 -
Accrued expenses 361,312 11,723 373,035 -
Accrued compensated absences 37,540 2,797 40,337 -
Accrued interest payable 201,695 - 201,695 -
Current portion of customer deposits 695,245 - 695,245 -
Current portion of long-term obligations, net 6,423,475 - 6,423,475 34,442
Due to other funds 87,054 4,664 91,718 -
Advances from other funds - 34,442 34,442 -
Refundable grant obligations - 15,322 15,322 -
Unearned revenue - 6,347 6,347 -
Total current liabilities 12,393,471 94,267 12,487,738 34,442
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Customer deposits 439,182 11,680 450,862 -
Compensated absences 698,276 26,906 725,182 -
Refundable grant obligations - - - 205,000
Advances from other funds - 205,000 205,000 -
Long-term obligations, net 26,648,550 - 26,648,550 -
Other postemployment benefits 601,970 - 601,970 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 28,387,978 243,586 28,631,564 205,000
Total liabilities 40,781,449 337,853 41,119,302 239,442
NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 79,452,252 13,342,223 92,794,475 -

Restricted for debt service 2,609,803 - 2,609,803 -

Restricted donation - 2,712 2,712

Restricted for capital projects 5,017,007 - 5,017,007 -

Unrestricted (deficit) 28,165,456 467,318 28,632,774 187,731

Total net assets $ 115,244,518 $ 13,812,253 $ 129,056,771 $ 187,731

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Business-type Activities

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Stillwater Non Major Activities
Utilities Enterprise Internal
Authority Funds Totals Service Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 59,376,918 $ 1,141,578 $ 60,518,496 $ 10
Other 1,822,136 303,243 2,125,379 -
Total operating revenues 61,199,054 1,444 821 62,643,875 10
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and maintenance 41,907,410 1,660,003 43,567,413 -
Depreciation 6,450,361 711,440 7,161,801 -
Amortization - 976 976 -
Total operating expenses 48,357,771 2,372,419 50,730,190 -
Operating income (loss) 12,841,283 (927,598) 11,913,685 10
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 110,820 3,823 114,643 491
Interest expense (694,623) - (694,623) -
Debt issuance costs (69,741) - (69,741) -
Other income 163,705 - 163,705 -
Net nonoperating revenues (489,839) 3,823 (486,016) 491
Income (loss) before
capital contributions and transfers 12,351,444 (923,775) 11,427,669 501
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions 2,246,753 444 878 2,691,631 -
Transfers in 8,321,555 243,993 8,565,548 -
Transfers out (13,377,223) (44,270) (13,421,493) -
Net capital contributions and transfers (2,808,915) 644,601 (2,164,314) -
Change in net assets 9,542,529 (279,174) 9,263,355 501
NET ASSETS, beginning 105,701,989 14,091,427 119,793,416 187,230
NET ASSETS, ending $ 115244518 $ 13,812,253 $ 129,056,771 $ 187,731

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Inter fund activity-payments to other funds
Other receipts (payments)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Transfers to other funds

Transfers in from other funds

Miscellaneous income

Principal paid - noncapital financing activities
Interest paid - noncapital financing activities

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS-PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Business-type Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contributions
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from capital debt
Bond issue costs paid
Transfers in related to captial financing
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on debt
Net cash provided by (used for) capital activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments
Maturity of investments
Interest income
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used for) operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating

activities:
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net
Inventories
Accounts and other payables
Unearned revenue
Accrued expenses
Other postemployment benfits
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Non cash activities

Principal forgiveneess on debt

Capital assets donated to the Authority
Capital assets transferred

Borrowings under capital lease
Change in fair value of investments

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

Enterprise Funds Govemmental
Stillwater Non Major Activities
Utilities Enterprise Internal
Authority Funds Totals Service Funds
$ 57,888,360 $ 1,141,429 3 59,029,789 $ -
(31,165,879) (1,470,745) (32,636,624) -
(10,013,122) (355,013) (10,368,135) -
(1,304,690) (43,558) (1,348,248) (61,862)
1,822,136 153,216 1,975,352 10
17,226,805 (574,671) 16,652,134 (61.852)
(13,349,371) 344,718 (13,004,653) -
6,583,900 - 6,583,900 -
418,740 - 418,740 -
(120,118) - (120,118) -
— (4538) - (4,538) -
(6,471,387) 344,718 (6.126,669) -
- 299,795 299,795 -
(5,947,283) (359,764) (6,307,047) -
70,835 - 70,835 -
11,196,308 - 11,196,308 -
(69,250) - (69,250) -
1,645,975 - 1,645,975 -
(5,714,735) 44,038 (5,670,697) -
(967.094) - (967,094) -
214,756 (15,931) 198,825 -
(20,267,722) - (20,267,722) -
9,989,136 - 9,989,136 -
241,922 3,582 245,504 491
(10,036,664) 3,582 (10,033,082) 491
933,510 (242,302) 691,208 (61,361)
22,363,827 585,262 22,949,089 249,092
$ 23,297,337 $ 342,960 3 23,640,297 $ 187,731
$ 12,841,283 3 (927,598) 3 11,913,685 3 10
6,450,361 711,440 7,161,801 -
- 976 976 -
(1,462,943) 7,384 (1,455,559) -
(784,126} (78,229) (862,355) -
(166,221} (288,316) (454,537) (61,862)
- (2,371) (2,371) -
151,397 2,043 153,440 -
197,054 - 197,054 -
17,226,805 3 (574.671), 3 16,652,134 $  (61852)
3 876,551 $ - 3 876,551 $ -
1,370,201 - 1,370,201 -
78,850 - 78,850 -
860,045 - 860,045 -
(142,068) - (142,068) -
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2011
Retiree Only
Defined Agency
Benefit Plan Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents - $ 169,131
Investments $ 5,715,729 260,000
Assessment receivables - 805
Total assets $ 5,715,729 $ 429,936
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ - $ 3,237
Amounts held in escrow - 426,699
Total Liabilities - $ 429,936
NET ASSETS:
Held in trust for pension benefits $ 5,715,729

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Retiree Only
Defined
Benefit Plan
ADDITIONS:
Investment Income $ 1,032,930
Total Additions 1,032,930
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits 13,338
Administrative expense 16,037
Total Deductions 29,375
Net increase 1,003,555
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits
Beginning of year 4,712,174
End of year $ 5,715,729
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City of Stillwater, Oklahoma
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2011

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
REPORTING ENTITY

The City of Stillwater, Oklahoma (the City) is a municipal corporation operating under the authority of
Oklahoma State Statute. The City operates under a city manager form of government. Four elected
members of the City Council and the Mayor set policy. The City Council employs the city manager. The
basic financial statements of the funds and fiduciary funds of the City include those of separately
administered organizations that are controlled by or dependent on the legislative or executive branches, the
City Council and the City Manager, respectively. In accordance with the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” as amended by GASB Statement No.
39, “Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units,” the City has presented the
entities which comprise the primary government along with its discretely presented component units in the
basic financial statements. As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, the basic financial statements present the reporting entity which consists of the primary
government and organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable.

Based on the foregoing criteria, the accounts of the following organizations are included in the City’s
reporting entity:
Blended Component Units

The following component units have been presented as blended component units because the governing
body is substantially the same as the governing body of the City.

Stillwater Utilities Authority

The Stillwater Utilities Authority (the “SUA”) was created by a trust indenture dated April 1, 1979,
pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1971, Section 176 to 180.4 and the Oklahoma Trust Act,
designating the City Council as trustee for the benefit of the City in respect to water, sewer and
electric service. The SUA leases, operates and maintains the water, sewer, electrical and sanitation
utilities pursuant to a renewable lease agreement and an operation and maintenance contract with the
City. The operations, maintenance and debt of the SUA are funded from service charges and a one
cent sales tax levied by the City and transferred to the SUA as the SUA has no taxing authority. The
operations of SUA are reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as an enterprise fund.

The Stillwater Public Works Authority

The Stillwater Public Works Authority (the “SPWA”) was created by a Declaration of Trust dated
January 21, 1963, pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1961 and the Oklahoma Trust Act,
designating the City Council as trustee to enter into contractual arrangements to provide services and
physical facilities to departments of the City and, on behalf of the City, to other governments and
residential and commercial residents within the corporate boundaries of the City. There are both
formal and informal leasing arrangements between the SPWA and the City. The SPWA operations
are reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as the internal service fund.
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Stillwater Industrial and Redevelopment Authority

The Stillwater Industrial and Redevelopment Authority (the “SIRA”) was established by resolution of
the City Council on February 19, 1990, pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1981, Sections
176-180.4, inclusive as amended and supplemented (The “Public Trust Act”), Title 11, Oklahoma
Statutes 1981, Sections 40-101 through 40-115, inclusive, as amended and supplemented (the “Central
Business District Redevelopment Act”). The SIRA is a public trust with the City as beneficiary and
the City Councilors designated as trustees. The main purpose is the improvement of the economic
climate of the trust beneficiary. Methods of improving the economic climate may include but are not
limited to, assisting in acquisition of financial resources to improve availability of housing,
redevelopment of blighted areas and other economic activities. The operations of the SIRA are
reported in the accompanying basic financial statements as an enterprise fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Stillwater Medical Center Authority

The Stillwater Medical Center Authority (the “Hospital”) was created by a trust indenture dated
December 14, 1971, pursuant to Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1961, Sections 176 to 180.4, and the
Oklahoma Trust Act, to construct, maintain and operate facilities for various types of health care
delivery, for use by the State or any political subdivision or municipality of the State and to lease
properties from the City., The Hospital is administered by a seven member Board of Trustees
consisting of the Mayor, or one other City Councilor, and six other individuals appointed by the City
Council. Although the Hospital Board of Trustees hires hospital management, monitors the activities
of the Hospital and establishes the rates and charges of the Hospital, the City may remove the Hospital
Trustees at will. The Hospital’s operating and capital expenditures, including debt service, are
financed entirely by the Hospital’s operating income. All indebtedness of the Hospital is the obligation
of the Hospital Trustees, payable solely from the Hospital’s assets. However, approval from the City
is required for debt issues in excess of 5% of the then outstanding Hospital debt. The City leases land
to the Hospital and is the beneficiary of the trust estate but has no responsibility to fund deficits or
subsidize operations. The Hospital has a December 31 year-end. To obtain separate financial
statements for the Hospital, contact the Chief Financial Officer, Stillwater Medical Center, 1323 West
Sixth Street, Stillwater, Oklahoma 74074.

Stillwater Convention And Visitors Bureau

The Stillwater Convention and Visitors Bureau was created by an ordinance dated March 25,
1985. The ordinance created a 4% excise tax from the gross proceeds derived from the receipts
received from occupancy of hotel rooms. These funds are to be used by the Bureau for the
development of Stillwater as a visitor destination. The Bureau is administrated by an eleven
member board which is appointed by the City Council. The board consists of a majority from the
private sector and not less than two from the hotel industry. The city manager or his designated
representative serves as ex-officio, non-voting member. The City approved the budget of the
Bureau. The Stillwater Chamber of Commerce provided daily oversight of the Bureau until
December 31, 2010. At that time, the operations of the bureau were incorporated into the City’s
operations under the supervision of the City Manager’s office.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-wide Financial Statements:

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the City as a whole. They
include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements:

The reporting entity is organized into funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity.
Separate financial statements are provided for the three fund categories: governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on major funds with the governmental and proprietary categories. A
fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 % of the corresponding fund category total, and

b. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund
or enterprise fund are at least 5 % of the corresponding total for all governmental funds and
enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the City are described below:
General Fund

The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City government and will always be classified as
a major fund. It is used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources, other than
capital projects, that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or otherwise
segregated for accounting purposes and include the following:

Community Development Block Grant Fund
Library Materials Enhancement Fund

Debt Service Fund

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of ad-valorem taxes levied by the City
for the payment of general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs.

Capital Projects Fund

The capital projects funds are used to account for the resources restricted for the acquisition or
construction of specific capital projects or items and include the following:

Police/Municipal Building
Transportation Improvement Fund
Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar
to private business enterprises (a) where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered
primarily through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic
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determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or net income is appropriate for capital
maintenance, management control, accountability or other purpose.

The reporting entity includes the following enterprise funds:

Stillwater Utilities Authority
Airport
Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Authority

Internal Service Fund

The internal service fund is the SPWA and accounts for acquisition and financing of physical
facilities. Debt service requirements are provided from charges billed to the benefited fund.

Fiduciary Fund

The Fiduciary fund is used to account for assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
cannot be used to support the City’s programs. The City has the following fiduciary or agency
accounts:

Defined Benefit Retiree Account (Fiduciary)

Property Rehabilitation Escrow Sanitary Sewer Assessments
Business Improvement District Assessments Public Library Donations
Sidewalk Escrow Bond Escheatment Escrow
Right Of Way Escrow Airport Grant Escrow

Street Assessments Performance Guarantee Escrow

Discretely Presented Component Units

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities whose governing body (in majority) is
appointed by the Mayor or City Council, but whose governing body is not substantially the same as
the City Council nor is an entity established to provide services primarily to the primary government.
Since these component units are not as closely associated with the City as are the blended component
units, they are reported in discretely presented columns on the government-wide financial statements
labeled “Component Units.,” The reporting entity includes the following discretely presented
component units:

Stillwater Medical Center Authority
Stillwater Convention and Visitors Bureau

Major Governmental Funds: Description
General Fund See previous description
Transportation Improvement Fund Accounts for the expenditures for street projects as

approved by the voters in 2001 and other transportation
projects. Financing is provided by the ' cent sales tax also

approved by the voters.
Major Enterprise Fund: Description
Stillwater Utility Authority (SUA) Accounts for the operations of the electric, water, sewer

and sanitation system under the Stillwater Utilities
Authority, a public trust existing under a Trust Indenture
dated April 1, 1979, which was created by an ordinance of
the City.
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Non-Major Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Community Development Block Grants  Accounts for funds used for the improvements in low-
income portions of the community. Funding is provided by
the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Set
Aside program and local matching funds.

Library Materials Enhancement Accounts for the expenditures of the proceeds from the sale
of the old library building.
Debt Service Fund See previous description
Capital Project Fund
Police/Municipal Building See previous description
Enterprise Funds:
Airport Accounts for the operation of the Stillwater Municipal

Airport including capital additions and improvements
financed through federal and state grant proceeds and
City contributions.

Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment

Authority Accounts for expenditures for industrial redevelopment.
Financing is provided from federal grants, federal loans,
city contributions and citizen participation.

Internal Service Fund:
Stillwater Public Works Authority ~  Accounts for acquisition and financing of physical
facilities. Debt service requirements are provided from
charges billed to the benefited fund.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various financial
statements. Basis of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement
focus applied.

The government-wide statement of net assets and statement of activities are presented using the economic
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets
and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange
takes place.

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
“measurable and available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount.
Available means revenues are collectible within the current period or within 60 days of the end of the
fiscal year. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred,
except for general obligation bond principal and interest and accrued compensated absences which are
recorded when due.
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The City has elected to apply all applicable GASB pronouncements as well as Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions, issued on or
before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash in bank, cash on hand, and short-term investments with original
maturities of ninety days or less are reported as cash and cash equivalents. The resources of the individual
funds are general in purpose and combined to form a pool of investments which is managed by the
Director of Finance. These pooled assets (comprised of Treasury repurchase agreements) are stated at
amortized cost if the investment had a maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase and all long-
term investments are recorded at fair value. All investments held are authorized under Oklahoma State
Statutes. Permissible investments include direct obligations of the U. S. government and agency
securities, certificates of deposit, and savings accounts or savings certificates of savings and loan
associations. Each fund’s equity in the pooled investments account is reported in the basic financial
statements as cash and cash equivalents.

Earnings on investments are allocated to the individual funds by a formula based on each fund’s
month-end equity in the pooled investments account (See Note 2).

Assets Internally Designated - Assets internally designated consist of cash and cash equivalents set aside
by the Stillwater Utilities Authority Board of Trustees in anticipation of future potential operating cost
increases and/or future substantial capital expenditure requirements (rate stabilization assets) and at the
Board’s discretion may subsequently be used for other purposes. As of June 30, 2011, cash and cash
equivalents in the amount of $12,035,701 have been internally designated by the SUA trustees for this
purpose.

Investments - Investments with an original maturity of one year or less are recorded at amortized cost.
Long term investments are recorded at fair value.

Accounts Receivable/Due from Other Governments — In the government-wide statements, receivables
consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts
receivable of $2,274,261 are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.
Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, franchise taxes,
grants, court fines and ambulance fees.

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such
as sales tax, franchise tax and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues, since they are usually
both measurable and available. Non-exchange revenues collectible but not available are deferred in the
fund financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual basis of accounting, but not deferred in
the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Proprietary
fund receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Ultility accounts
receivable comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for uncollectible accounts
receivable of $226,545 are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable,

Receivables of the Stillwater Medical Center Authority consists of patient accounts receivable for service
rendered. The Hospital provides an allowance of $4,625,000 for uncollectible accounts receivable based
upon historical trends and the existing economic conditions,.

Restricted Assets - Proceeds from debt and related sinking fund accounts and contributions from
governmental grantors to the Enterprise Funds are classified as restricted assets, since their use is restricted
by applicable bond indentures and grant agreements. Customer utilities deposits held by the City are
classified as restricted assets.
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Inventories - Inventories, consisting primarily of materials and supplies, are stated at weighted average
cost. The consumption method of accounting is used by the governmental funds; therefore, inventory
purchases are recorded in these funds as expenditures as they are used. Inventories are adjusted to annual
physical count, and since inventories are not available spendable resources, are equally offset by a
reservation of fund balance in the governmental funds. Inventories of proprietary funds consist primarily
of materials, supplies and fuel oil and are reported at the lower of average cost or market.

Bond Premiums/Discounts and Issuance Costs - Debt discount, premium, and issue costs are amortized
using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method, over the life of the
applicable debt. Amortized debt discount and premium are reported as a component of interest expense,
while amortized debt issue costs are reported separately as non-operating expense.

Capital Assets - The accounting treatment for property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations and similar discretely presented component
unit operations or proprietary fund operations and similar discretely presented component unit operations
and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. Interest incurred
during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed. The total interest expense incurred by business-type activities
was $826,717. Of this amount, $132,093 was capitalized on construction in progress during 2011,

Unamortized Loss Due to Bond Refunding - A non-cash gain or loss resulting from the refunding of bonds
is amortized using the straight-line method over the original life of the defeased bonds. Loss on
defeasance is reported as a component of interest expense.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, property, plant and equipment are accounted for as capital
assets. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable,
except for donated capital assets which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.
The threshold for capitalization of assets is $5,000. All land acquired by the city is capitalized.

Prior to July 1, 2002, governmental activities’ infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets
(dating back to July 1, 1980) have been valued at estimated historical cost.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets. Depreciation is
provided over the assets’ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Estimated
Class of Asset Useful Life
Buildings 10-70 Years
Other Improvements 2-70 Years
Equipment and vehicles 1-58 Years
Infrastructure 25-50 Years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as
capital outlay expenditures upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are
accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements.
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Long-term Debt

Accounting treatment of long-term debt varies depending upon the source of repayment and whether the
debt is reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and similar discretely presented component unit
resources and business-type and similar discretely presented component unit resources are reported as
liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of accrued
compensated absences, general obligation bonds payable, capital leases payable, notes payable and
revenue bonds payable.

Long-term debt of governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements.
Payment of principal and interest is reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary funds is the
same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements,

Compensated Absences

Sick Pay - Employees may accrue a maximum of 1,000 hours of sick leave. An employee with five or
more years of service who retires or resigns shall receive a bonus credit of 10% of the accumulated unused
sick leave to be computed at the rate of pay being received by the employee at retirement or resignation
date. Employees with ten to thirty-five years of service receive a bonus credit ranging from 12.5% to
35%.

Vacation Pay - Employees are credited with vacation at various rates depending on length of employment,
Nonuniformed employees may accumulate and carry over to subsequent years up to 200.16 hours of
vacation. Police officers can carry over to subsequent years up to 275 hours of vacation. Firefighters can
carry over to subsequent years up to 381.96 hours of vacation. Upon termination, employees are paid for
unused vacation.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide
statements. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial
statements, governmental funds report only the compensated absences to the extent they have matured.
The proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred. As of year-end, there is no liability reported in
the fund financial statements. Compensated absences are paid as they are incurred by the applicable fund
charged with the employee’s compensation. All governmental funds participated in the pooled cash
account and thus the payments are funded by this account.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue primarily consists of unavailable property taxes, municipal court fines, and ambulance
charges.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes,
leases or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
those assets.

2. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external
groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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3. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested
in capital assets, net of related debt”.

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted net assets prior to the use of unrestricted net assets when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available,

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as non-
spendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned. Non-spendable fund balance includes
inventory items that are not expected to be converted to cash. Restricted fund balances include resources
with externally imposed constraints such as debt covenants, certain donation agreements, and enabling
legislation that is legally enforceable. Committed fund balance includes resources that are constrained in
their use by resolution of the council. Assigned fund balance includes resources that are constrained by
management at the direction of the council. Unassigned fund balances are those residual resources that are
spendable and are not restricted, committed, or assigned. Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as
in the government-wide statements,

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES

Sales tax

The City levies a three and one-half cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is
collected by the Oklahoma Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the
Tax Commission, The Tax Commission receives the sales tax approximately one month after collection
by vendors. The entire sales tax is recorded as revenue within the General Fund. Upon receipt, the
General Fund distributes the dedicated portion of the sales tax as follows:

1. 2 cents retained by the General Fund for operations.

2. 1 cent transferred to the Stillwater Utilities Authority as required by revenue bond indentures.
The proceeds are used in accordance with the trust indenture and current bond indentures.

3. % cent transferred to the Transportation Fund to be used for the projects approved by the
voters in September 2001, other transportation projects and, as approved by voters in May
2007, debt service related to transportation projects.

Property tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be
levied to repay principal and interest on general obligation bonds and court-assessed judgments. Property
taxes attach an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. Taxes are levied annually on November 1
and are due one-half by December 31 and one-half by March 31. The Tax Assessor’s office bills and
collects the property taxes and remits to the City its portion. Property taxes not paid prior to April are
considered delinquent.

Property tax levied during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was used to fund the annual debt service
requirements of the 2010 General Obligation Refunding bonds.

Program Revenues

In the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside
the City’s taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the following program revenues in
each activity:
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Public safety

Recreation and culture

General government
Financial administration

Streets and sewers

Health and welfare

Economic Development

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. All taxes are classified as general revenue even
if restricted for a specific purpose.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds and similar discretely presented component units
are those that result from providing services and producing and delivering goods and/or services. It also
includes all revenues and expenses not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing, or

investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial statements, expenses are reported on the accrual basis and are classified

Fire and police fines assessed for training, fire run
fees, operating and capital grants from the
Department of Homeland Security, U.S. Department
of Justice, Oklahoma Highway Safety Grants and the
Department of Juvenile Affairs and donations from
outside contributors

Park and recreation fees; capital and operating grants
from the Oklahoma Department of Transportation,
Department of Wildlife, and donations

Property rentals and donations

Licenses and municipal court fines collected

Capital grants, motor fuel tax and commercial
vehicle tax revenues

Ambulance fees, permits, grants from the Oklahoma
Department of Commerce and the Oklahoma
Department of Forestry

Donations

by function for both governmental and business-type activities.

In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures/expenses are classified as follows:

Governmental Funds-By Character:

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources.

Current (further classified by function)
Capital outlay

Debt service

Proprietary funds report expenses relating to use of economic resources.

INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide statement of net assets
and statement of activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial

statements have been eliminated or reclassified.
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Fund Financial Statements:

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported
as follows in the fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund
receivables and payables.

2. Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as
revenues and expenditures/expenses.

3. Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures or
expenses to the funds that initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements but as
adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the respective funds.

4. Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected
are reported as transfers in and out.

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide statements as
follows:

1. Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables
and payables are eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the
statement of net assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and
business-type activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

2. Internal activities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are
eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of
transfers between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Transfers-
Internal Activities.

3. Primary government and component unit activity and balances - resource flows between the
primary government (the City) and the discretely presented component unit (the Stillwater
Convention and Visitors Bureau) are reported as if they were external transactions.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(2) STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABLITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component units are subject to various
federal, state and local laws and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with
significant laws and regulations and demonstration of its stewardship over City resources follows:

FUND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

The City complies, in all material respects, with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the
use of separate funds. The legally required funds used by the City include the following;:

Fund Required by
Debt Service Fund State Law
Stillwater Utilities Authority Trust Indenture
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Fund Required by
Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Authority Trust Indenture
Stillwater Public Works Authority Trust Indenture

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by most funds, as discussed in Note 1. In
addition, cash and investments are separately held by several of the City’s funds.

It is the City’s policy to use state statutes (as they relate to municipal deposits and investments) as the
City’s deposit and investment guide. Therefore, the City collateralizes 100% of all deposit amounts,
including interest, not covered by federal deposit insurance. Obligations that may be pledged as
collateral include U.S. government issues, U.S. government insured securities, State of Oklahoma
bonds, and bonds of any Oklahoma county or school district. The City prefers and requests U.S.
governmental securities as collateral.

Public trusts created under O.S. Title 60, are not subject to the statutory investment limitations and are
primarily governed by any restrictions in their trust or bond indentures. For the year ended June 30,
2011, the City and its public trusts complied, in all material respects, with these investment
restrictions.

REVENUE RESTRICTIONS

The City has various restrictions placed over certain revenue sources from state or local requirements.
The primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use

Sales Tax See note 1

Gasoline Excise & Commercial Vehicle Tax Street and Alley Purposes

E-911 Revenue E-911 Emergency Services Purposes
Ad-valorem Tax Debt Service on Bonds and Judgments
Grants Revenue Based upon Individual Grant Agreements
Hotel/Motel Tax Economic Development

Storm Water Fee Storm Water Management Purposes

Fire and Police Training Fee Training of the fire and police departments

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City complied, in all material respects, with these revenue
restrictions.

DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS
General Obligation Debt

Article 10, Sections 26 and 27 of the Oklahoma Constitution limits the amount of outstanding general
obligation bonded debt of the municipality for non-utility or non-street purposes to no more than 10%
of net assessed valuation. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City complied with this restriction.
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Other Long-Term Debt

As required by the Oklahoma State Constitution, the City (excluding public trusts) may not incur any
indebtedness that would require payment from resources beyond the current fiscal year revenue,
without obtaining voter approval. For the year ended June 30, 2011, no such debt was incurred by the
City.

Revenue Bond Debt

The bond indenture relating to the revenue bond issue of the SUA contains a number of restrictions or
covenants that are financial related. These include covenants such as a required flow of funds through
special accounts, required reserve account balances, and revenue bond debt service coverage
requirements. The following schedule presents a brief summary of the most significant requirements
and the SUA’s level of compliance thereon as of June 30, 2011.

Requirement Level of Compliance

a. Flow of funds: All required accounts have been established
Sales Tax Account and are used per Bond Indenture requirements.
Bond Account

b. Reserve Account Requirement: The Bonds are secured by a Surety Policy issued

by Ambac Assurance Corporation in lieu of
capitalizing a Bond Fund Reserve.

¢. Revenue Bond and Oklahoma For the year ended June 30, 2011, available
Water Resources Board Note revenues plus sales tax transfer, was
Requirement $68,057,479; bond requirement is operating

and maintenance excluding depreciation or
$41,907,410 plus 125% of next years principal
and interest or $6,346,366. Excess coverage
was $19,803,703 or 312% of required principal
and interest coverage.

FUND EQUITY/NET ASSET RESTRICTIONS
Deficit Prohibition

Title 11, Section 17-211 of the Oklahoma Statutes prohibits the creation of a deficit fund balance in
any individual fund. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City had not incurred a fund balance
deficit in any individual fund.

Special Assessments

In accordance with Statement No. 6 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, the capital
assets pertaining to the special assessments of 1981 and 1984, for sanitary sewer improvements, have
been included in the sewer plant assets. The debt that is associated with special assessments in the
City is secured by liens on assessed properties, but is not backed by the full faith and credit of the City
and is not backed by any other type of general government commitment. Therefore, the City is not
liable under any circumstances for the repayment of this debt should the property owners default. The
City is only acting as an agent for the property owners in collecting the assessment and forwarding the
collections to the bondholders. At June 30, 2011, the property owners owed the bondholders $500 for
the outstanding bonds.

(3) DETAILED NOTES-TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic financial
statements for various assets, liabilities, equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.
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DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The City’s deposit policy for custodial credit risk requires compliance with the provisions
of state law.

State law requires collateralization of all deposits with federal depository insurance; U.S. government
issues; U.S. government insured securities; State of Oklahoma bonds; or bonds of any county or school
district of the State of Oklahoma.

At June 30, 2011, the City’s bank balance of $40,069,583 was not exposed to custodial credit risk, At
December 31, 2010, $14,171,000 of the Hospital’s bank balance of $18,437,000 was uninsured and
uncollateralized.

Investments

The City may legally invest in direct obligations of the U.S. government and agency securities, certificates
of deposit and savings accounts or savings certificates of savings and loan associations.

The Hospital may legally invest in direct obligations of and other obligations guaranteed as to principal by
the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies and instrumentalities and in bank repurchase agreements. It may also
invest to a limited extent in corporate bonds and equity securities.

Interest Rate Risk

The City’s investment policy does not address interest rate risk. The Hospital’s investment policy
generally limits its investment portfolio to maturities of three to five years.

At June 30, 2011 the City had the following investments and maturities:

More

Type Rating Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10
Certificates of deposit *k 15,528,421 $ - $ 15,528,421 $ - $ -
FHLMC AAA (1) $ 6,901,570 - - - 6,901,570

$ 22,429,991 $ - $ 15,528,421 5 - $ 6,901,570
Fixed income *** Not avail. 1,175,306
Equities 4,344,661
Real Estate 195,762

$ 28,145,720

** Not subject to rating
***  Fixed income investments are administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund. Maturity
information is not readily available.
(1) In August 2011 Standard and Poor's (S&P) downgraded the U.S. governement's debt rating
to AA. Additionally, S&P downgraded debt securities issued by the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) to AA because of its implicit reliance on the U.S. governement.
Concurrent with this downgrade, the other rating agencies, Moody's and Fitch, both reaffirmed
their highest credit ratings of these securities.
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At December 31, 2010, the Hospital’s investments had the following investments and maturities:

Maturities in Years

More
Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-5 6-10 than 10
Guaranteed investment contracts $ 1,245,000  § - $ - $ 1,245,000 $ -
U.S. treasury obligations 239,540 - 145,196 94,344 -
U.S. agencies obligations 3,004,226 - 1,107,789 148,070 1,748,367
Corporate bonds 3,484,503 59,879 505,579 2,198,179 720,866
Money market mutual funds 3,800,203 3,800,203 - - -
11,773,472  § 3,860,082  $ 1,758,564 $ 3,685,593 $ 2,469,233
Corporate stocks 7,242,676
Accrued investment income 77,967
$ 19,094,115

Investment Credit Risk — Investment credit risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The City’s investment policy does not address credit risk. The
Hospital’s policy is to limit its investments to a credit rating of no less than investment grade, or an
overall weighted-average rating of A by Standard and Poor’s (S & P) or an equivalent rating by another
reputable institution. The corporate bonds of the Hospital have ratings ranging from BBB to AA+ by
Standard and Poor’s. The money market mutual funds of the Hospital are rated AAA by Standard and
Poor’s.  Certain investments, which include guaranteed investment contracts and U.S. agencies
obligations, were not rated by S & P.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City places no limit on the amount that may be invested in any one
issuer. The Hospital’s investment policy limits equity investments in any one issuer, other than the U.S.
government or its agencies, to 10% of the market value of the fixed income portfolio and to 5% of the
market value of the equity portfolio. At December 31, 2010, the following investments exceeded 5% of
the total value of all Hospital investments:

Investment Fair Value % of Total
JP Morgan US Treas Plus Inv 3126 $ 1,386,086 6.0%
FGIC Capital MRK SERV GIC $ 1,245,000 5.4%

Custodial Risk - Custodial risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy does not address custodial risk. However,
the City’s investments are in the City’s name, thus the City has no custodial risk at June 30, 2011. The
Hospital’s investment policy does not address how these securities are to be held.
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Summary of Carrying Values
Schedule of Deposits and Investments:

Primary Component
Carrying Amounts Government Units Total
Deposits $ 31,557,461 $ 19,149,328 $ 50,706,789
Investments 28,145,720 19,094,115 47,239,835

$ 59,703,181 § 38,243,443 $ 97,946,624

Reconciliation to Government-wide Statement of Net Assets
Included in the following balance sheet captions:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 29,537,842 $ 14,957,863 $ 44,495,705

Investments 15,180,156 20,647,388 35,827,544

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,840,323 919,461 9,759,784

Restricted investments - 1,718,731 1,718,731

Fiduciary funds 6,144,860 - 6,144,860

Total $ 59,703,181 $ 38,243,443 $ 97,946,624
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The accounts receivable of the governmental activities consist of franchise taxes, police fines, E-
911, ambulance fees, rural fire charges, and stormwater fee receivables. Ambulance fees are 22
percent of the total. Cable franchise taxes are 13 percent of the total while rural fire accounts
receivable is 10 percent of the total. The remaining receivables are intergovernmental and due
from various customers. The accounts receivable of the business-type activities are amounts due
from utility customers. All receivables are expected to be collected within one year.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accounts payable balances are payables to vendors. Accrued liabilities are salaries and wages
payable as well as accrued insurance where applicable.

RESTRICTED ASSETS
Certain assets of the SUA are restricted in their use by bond and note indentures. Cash and cash
equivalents, classified as current, in the amount of $2,609,803 at June 30, 2011, was restricted in
use to the service of debt.

Certain cash and cash equivalents of the SUA are restricted by agreement for the purpose of
acquiring necessary easements related to water line upgrades for an area of service purchased
from a rural water district. As of June 30, 2011, cash and cash equivalents, classified as non-
current, of $54,756 was restricted for this purpose.

Cash and cash equivalents received by the SUA from Rural Water Corporation No. 3 are
restricted by agreement for the purpose of completing upgrades, improvements, and/or
expansions of the water distribution system in specified areas. As of June 30, 2011 cash and cash
equivalents, classified as non-current, in the amount of $278,827 was restricted for this purpose.
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Proceeds received from the 2010 Revenue Note issue are restricted in their use to finance
transportation improvement projects identified in the 2006 Transportation Sales Tax Ordinance.
As of June 30, 2011, cash and cash equivalents, classified as current, in the amount of $4,683,424
were restricted for this purpose.

Cash and cash equivalents received from utility customers for payment of the Western Payne
County Ambulance Trust Authority (WPCATA) subscription fee are restricted in their use. Per
agreement, the SUA remits to the WPCATA, on a monthly basis, all money collected from said
charge. As of June 30, 2011 cash and equivalents, classified as current, in the amount of $79,086
were restricted for this purpose.

Customer deposits received for water or electric service are restricted in their use toward the
customer’s final bill. As of June 30, 2011, cash and cash equivalents in the amount of $1,134,427
of which $685,945 is classified as current and $448,482 is classified as non-current, have been
restricted for customer deposits.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction-in-progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total other capital assets at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Other capital assets, net
Governmental activities capital assets, net
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction-in-progress
Total capital assets not being depreciated
Other capital assets:
Buildings
Other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Intangible assets
Utility plant in service
Total other capital assets at historical cost
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Utility plant in service
Less amortization for intangible assets:
Total accumulated depreciation/amortization
Other capital assets, net
Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance

June 30, 2010 Additions Disposals June 30, 2011
$ 7,353,874 $ - § 41,800 7,312,074
11,798,131 2,693,201 12,771,669 1,719,663
19,152,005 2,693,201 12,813,469 9,031,737
24,810,706 - 658,397 24,152,309
137,835,604 13,352,646 329,828 150,858,422
20,619,282 35,994 41,499 20,613,777
183,265,592 13,388,640 1,029,724 195,624,508
7,126,318 532,997 98,506 7,560,809
81,665,584 5,406,121 44,524 87,027,181
16,916,130 811,843 306,817 17,421,156
105,708,032 6,750,961 449,847 112,009,146
77,557,560 6,637,679 579,877 83,615,362
$ 96,709,565 $ 9,330,880 $ 13,393,346 92,647,099
$ 1,672,795 b 41,800 1,714,595
12,676,263 4,255,766 9,240,288 7,691,741
14,349,058 4,297,566 9,240,288 9,406,336
9,010,351 977,114 - 9,987,465
20,264,301 4,984,745 - 25,249,046
2,073,214 1,612,265 1,026,605 2,658,874
74,054 - - 74,054
170,317,316 6,062,592 285,547 176,094,361
201,739,236 13,636,716 1,312,152 214,063,800
3,072,693 323,041 - 3,395,734
12,945,121 546,450 - 13,491,571
14,437,304 787,822 625,678 14,599,448
88,850,935 4,648,160 287,115 93,211,980
43,113 976 (29,965) 74,054
119,349,166 6,306,449 882,828 124,772,787
82,390,070 7,330,267 429,324 89,291,013
$ 96,739,128 $ 11,627,833 $ 9,669,612 98,697,349
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COMPONENT UNITS:

Balance Balance
December 31,2009 Additions Disposals December 31, 2010
Stillwater Medical Center Authority:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 2,115,409 $ - $ - $ 2,115,409
Construction-in-progress 2,069,150 819,861 187,273 2,701,738
Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,184,559 819,861 187,273 4,817,147
Other capital assets:
Land improvements $ 1,462,807 $ - 3 - $ 1,462,807
Building, improvements and fixed equip. 46,678,376 534,396 - 47,212,772
Major moveable equipment 45,745,228 2,358,815 407,223 47,696,820
Total other at capital assets 93,886,411 2,893,211 407,223 96,372,399
Less accumulated depreciation: 56,912,189 4,770,322 348,902 61,333,609
Other capital assets, net 36,974,222 (1,877,111) 58,321 35,038,790
Capital assets, net $ 41,158,781 $(1,057,250) $ 245,594 $ 39,855,937
Balance Balance
June 30, 2010 Additions Disposals June 30, 2011
Convention and Visitors Bureau:
Property, plant and equipment $ 59,867 $ - 5 59,867 $ -
Less accumulated depreciation 55,533 - 55,533 -
Capital assets, net $ 4,334 $ - % 4,334 $ -

Depreciation expense was charged to functions in the statement of activities as follows:
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government

Public Safety $ 426,780
Recreation and Culture 703,269
General Government 374,766
Financial Administration 487
Street 5,147,309
Human Services 98,350

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities $ 6,750,961

Business-type Activities:

Stillwater Utilities Authority $ 6,450,361
Airport (includes amortization of intangible assets) 711,480
Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Authority 936
Total depreciation expense for business-type activities $ 7,162,777
Component Units:
Stillwater Medical Center Authority $ 4,770,322
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INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Individual interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2011 were as follows:

Advances from Advances to
Non Major
Enterprise funds
Stillwater Public Works Authority $ 239,442

Stillwater Public Works Authority advanced funds to Stillwater Industrial Redevelopment Authority as a
grant/loan requirement from the Oklahoma Department of Commerce. This advance will not be paid

within one year.

Due from Due to
Stillwater Non Major
Utilities Proprietary
General Fund Authority funds

General Fund $ - $ 411,298 $ 6,348 § 417,646
Transportation Improvement fund 2,530 2,530
Non Major Proprietary funds 4,664 4,664
Stillwater Utilities Authority 87,054 87,054

$ 94,248 $ 411,298 $ 6,348 $ 511,894

The interfund balances result from the normal operations of the various funds. All customer utility accounts
are collected and deposited into the Stillwater Ultilities Authority. The other funds routinely make payments to
the City to cover payroll, vendor payments, health insurance costs, workers’ compensation costs and other
operating costs. Generally these charges are paid within a month of their incurrence.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Interfund transfers were made to fund cash shortages in the various funds as needed. These shortages
occurred due to operating expenditures exceeding fund revenues. The transfers to governmental capital
assets consisted of net assets transferred upon the dissolution of the Stillwater Public Golf Authority.
Interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011, consisted of

the following:
Transfers In Transfers Out
Transporation Non major Non major Stillwater
General Improvement  Governmental Enterprise Utilities
Fund Fund Funds Funds Authority Total

General Fund $ - $ - $ 160,402 §$ 44270 $ 10,480,454 $ 10,685,126
Governmental capital assets - - - - 78,850 78,850
Transp. Impr. Fund 3,299,402 - - - 2,817,919 6,117,321
Stillwater Utilities Authority 6,675,580 1,645,975 - - - 8,321,555
Non Major Governmental Funds 243,993 - - - - 243,993

Non Major Enterprise Funds

$ 10,218975 § 1,645975 § 160,402 § 44270 $ 13377223 § 25,446,845
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from
governmental activities, amounts to be repaid from business-type activities, and amounts to be repaid
from component units.

Governmental Activities:

At June 30, 2011, the governmental activities long-term debt consisted of the following:

General Obligation Bonds:

$8,390,000 Refunding Bonds of 2010, due in annual
installments of ranging from $775,000 to $825,000 with
a final payment of $350,000 due June 1, 2021, interest rate

of 4.00% $ 7,615,000
Plus Unamortized premium 632,737

Total general obligation Bonds $8,247,737

Current portion $ 825,000
Non-current portion 7.422.737
Total general obligation Bonds $8,247,737

Accrued Compensated Absences-Governmental Activities:

Current portion $ 14,934
Non-current portion 1,965,699
Total accrued compensated absences $1,980,633

Stillwater Public Works Authority
Refundable Grant Obligations,

Grant from Oklahoma Department of Commerce in the original amount of

$325,000 with 0% interest per annum. The final installment will be

December 2011. This obligation is collateralized by a lease between

SIRA and Esker US, Inc. $ 14,442

Grant from Oklahoma Department of Commerce in the original amount of
$400,000 with 0% per annum. The final installment will be October 31, 2023.

This obligation is collateralized by a lease between SIRA and Nomadics, Inc. 225,000
Total refundable grant obligations 239.442
Current portion $ 34,442
Non-current portion 205,000
Total refundable grant obligations $239,442
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Business-type Activities:

As of June 30, 2011 the long-term liabilities payable from business-type activities consisted of the

following;

Stillwater Utilities Authority:

Notes Payable:

2002 Oklahoma Water Resources Board (OWRB) SRF Note Payable dated
February 28, 2002, original amount of $3,413,483 with no interest plus an
administrative fee of 0.5%, semiannual installments of principal commencing
March 15, 2002, through September 2021.

2002 OWRB SRF Note Payable dated December 19, 2002, original amount of $4,876,086
with no interest plus an administrative fee of 0.5%, semiannual installments of principal
commencing March 15, 2003, through September 15, 2022.

2005 OWRB fixed interest rate Note Payable dated June 29, 2005, original amount of
$7,620,000 with interest at 2.6% plus an administrative fee of 0.5%, semiannual

installments of principal and interest commencing September 15, 2005, through
March 15, 2025.

2007 Revenue Note Payable dated December 5, 2007, original amount of
$6,010,000, secured by dedicated % cent sales tax revenues, interest rate is
3.68%, semiannual installments of principal and interest commencing
December 1, 2008, through December 1, 2016

2009 BancFirst Note dated September 16, 2009, original amount of $240,236,
2.5% interest, semiannual interest and annual principal installments commencing
April 1, 2010 through October 1, 2011

2009 OWRB DWSRF Note Payable dated November 24, 2009, original amount of
$11,645,000, eligible for $2,000,000 principal forgiveness from American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act grant funds, secured by utility revenues, semiannual principal
installments commence no later than March 15, 2013, 2.84% interest plus an
administrative fee of 0.5%

2009 OWRB CWSRF Note Payable dated November 24, 2009, not to exceed
$1,875,000, eligible for $578,999.81 principal forgiveness from American Recovery
and Reinvestment Act grant funds, secured by utility revenues, semiannual principal
installments commence no later than March 15, 2011, 2.34% interest plus an
administrative fee of 0.5%

2010 Revenue Note dated September 23, 2010, original amount of $6,075,000,
secured by dedicated "2 cent sales tax revenues, interest rate is 2.33%,

semiannual installments of principal and interest commencing December 1, 2010
through December 1, 2016

Total notes payable

Current portion
Non-current portion

Total notes payable
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$1,792,075

2,803,750

5,809,188

4,200,000

120,118

4,729,462

1,137,147

5.475.000
$26,066,740

$ 2,560,344
23,506,396

$26,066,740



Revenue Bonds:

2005 Refunding series bonds dated May 11, 2005, original issue amount of
$12,965,000, secured by utility revenues, interest rates range from 3.25% to 5.0%,
semiannual interest installments commencing October 1, 2005, through

October 1, 2012, annual principal installments commencing October 1, 2005,
through October 1, 2012.

Plus Unamortized premium

Less Unamortized loss on defeasance
Total revenue bonds
Current portion
Non-current portion

Total revenue bonds payable

Capital Lease Obligations:

Total machinery and equipment financed by capital lease obligations
Less accumulated depreciation
Net assets financed by leases

4,775,000
122,453
(19.863)

$4,877,590

$3,271,982
1,605,608

$4,877,590

$2,546,515
(500,591)
$2.045,924

Borrowings have been advanced pursuant to a credit agreement with Banc of America Leasing and Capital
LLC that provided, until October 31, 2011, for the purchase of equipment. Total borrowings are limited to
$2.3 million with a fixed interest rate determined at the time of funding. Total borrowings under this

credit agreement at June 30, 2011 was $2.1 million.

$553,307 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment; fixed interest rate
of 4.09%, semiannual installments  commencing December 15, 2006, through
June 15, 2014.

$96,543 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.4412%, monthly installments commencing April 15, 2010
through march 15, 2013

$20,161 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.0902%, monthly installments commencing April 15, 2010
through March 15, 2015

$391,032 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.1942%, monthly installments commencing April 30,2010
through March 30, 2015

$29,700 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.5322%, monthly installments commencing Aprit 30, 2010
through March 30, 2013

$481,057 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.2397%, monthly installments commencing May 15, 2010
through April 15, 2015

56

$ 228,732

57,173

15,408

299,041

17,598
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$201,802 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.1617%, monthly installments commencing June 15, 2010
through June 15, 2015 161,440

$54,783 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 3.1487%, monthly installments commencing June 15, 2010
through May 15, 2015 43,561

$12,524 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.9342%, monthly installments commencing July 30, 2010
through June 30, 2015 10,163

$245,932 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.8172%, monthly installments
commencing August 30, 2010 through July 30, 2015 203,396

$223,024 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6612%, monthly installments
commencing September 30, 2010 through August 30, 2015 187,881

$43,166 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6677%, monthly installments
commencing October 15, 2010 through September 15, 2015 37,053

$313,375 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6612%, monthly installments
commencing January 15, 2011 through December 15, 2015 283,878

$15,000 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.9082%, monthly installments
commencing April 30, 2011 through March 30, 2016 14,301

$19,548 capital lease with Bank of America for equipment,
fixed interest rate of 2.6612%, monthly installments
commencing July 30, 2011 through June 30, 2016 19,548

Other capital lease borrowings:
$218,439 capital lease with Empire Financial Services, Inc. for equipment;
fixed interest rate of 4.49%, monthly installments commencing July 7, 2008,

through June 7, 2013. 92,940

$185,760 capital lease with Capital One Public Funding, LLC for equipment;
fixed interest rate of 5.06%, semiannual installments commencing

December 21, 2008, through June 21, 2013 79.914
Total capital leases 2,127.69

Current portion $591,149
Non-current portion 1,536,546
Total capital leases $2,127,695
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Accrued Compensated Absences — Business-type activities:

Current portion $ 40,337
Non-current portion 725,182
Total accrued compensated absences $ 765,519

Component Unit;

Stillwater Medical Center Authority

Revenue Bonds

2005 Series A Revenue bonds original issue amount of $12,715,000, dated
May 2005, secured by gross revenues and trustee-held assets, interest
rates from 4.50% to 5.25%, principal payable annually and interest semiannually,

through May 15, 2019. $8,990,000
Less loss on bond defeasance (489,192)

Plus original issue premium 169.955

Net bond issue $8.670.763

2003 series Revenue bonds original issue amount of $7,000,000 dated
May 2003 secured by gross revenues and trustee held assets, interest at 5.625%,
principal paid annually and interest paid semiannually beginning May 15, 2018,

through May 15, 2023, $.7.000,000
Total revenue bonds $15,670,763
Current portion $ 816,692
Non-current portion 14,854,071

Total revenue bonds $15,670,763

Capital lease obligations

Total capital assets financed by capital lease obligations $ 3,115,241
Less accumulated depreciation (1.366.609)
Net assets financed by capital lease obligations $ 1,748,632

Capital lease issued for equipment, interest rate of 4.04% $912,273
Current portion $ 638,526
Non-current portion 273,747
Total capital lease obligations $ 912,273

Applicability of Federal Arbitrage — Debt issuances of the City and Authority issued after the Tax Reform
Act of 1986 are subject to the federal arbitrage regulations. The arbitrage rebate regulations require that
all earnings from the investment of gross proceeds of a bond issue in excess of the amount that could have
been earned had the yield on the investment been equal to the yield on the bonds be remitted to the federal
government, These carry strict penalties for non-compliance including taxability of interest retroactive to
the date of the issue. The City’s management believes the City is in compliance with these rules and
regulations.
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The following is a summary of the changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Type of Debt
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
General obligation Bonds
Refundable grant obligations
Accrued compensated absences

Total governmental activities

Business-type Activities
Capital lease obligations
Notes payable
Revenue bonds payable; net
Refundable grant obligation
Customer deposits
Accrued compensated absences

Total business-type activities

Component Unit:

Stillwater Medical Center Authority
Revenue bonds payable; net
Capital lease obligations

Amounts

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2010 Additions Reductions June 30, 2011 One Year
$ 9,085959 §$ - 838,222 § 8,247,737 $ 825,000
281,108 - 41,666 239,442 34,442
1,965,699 1,898,782 1,883,848 1,980,633 14,934

$ 11,332,766 $ 1,898,782 2,763,736 § 10,467,812 $ 874,376
$ 1,904,495 §$ 860,045 636,845 § 2,127,695 $ 591,149
17,914,992 11,196,308 3,044,560 26,066,740 2,560,344
7,989,348 - 3,111,758 4,877,590 3,271,982
170,513 - 155,191 15,322 15,322
1,171,722 685,170 710,785 1,146,107 695,245
665,539 734,831 634,851 765,519 40,337

$ 29816609 § 13,476,354 8,293,990 § 34,998,973 $ 7,174,379
$ 16447453 § - 776,690 § 15,670,763 $ 816,692
1,714,405 - 802,132 912,273 638,526

$ 18,161,858 % - 1,578,822 $ 16,583,036 $ 1,455,218

Annual Debt Service Requirements-Primary Government

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term liabilities

as of June 30, 2011, are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
General Obligation Refundable Grant
Obligations
Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 825,000 $ 304,600 § 34,442 -
2013 820,000 271,600 20,000 -
2014 815,000 238,800 20,000 -
2015 810,000 206,200 20,000 -
2016 805,000 173,800 20,000 -
2017-2021 3,540,000 388,600 100,000 -
2022-2023 - - 25,000 -
Total $ 7,615,000 $1,583,600 § 239,442 -
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Business-Type Activities

Year Ending Revenue Bonds Capital leases Notes Payable
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2012 $ 3,190,000 $ 159,000 $ 591,149 $§ 60,628 $ 2,560,343 $ 718,563
2013 1,585,000 39,625 600,232 40,621 2,744,247 653,763
2014 - - 494,710 22,178 3,053,135 575,421
2015 - - 387,240 7,209 3,129,471 490,417
2016 - - 54,364 394 3,215,803 357,883
2017-2021 - - - - 7,829,346 969,372
2022-2026 - - - - 3,522,249 200,080
2027-2031 - - - - 12,146 172
Total $ 4775000 § 198,625 $ 2127695  $§ 131,030 § 26,066,740  § 3,965,671
Component Unit
Year Ending Revenue Bonds Capital Leases
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2011 $ 855,000 § 835,419 $ 638526 § 25119
2012 900,000 789,350 273,747 2,771
2013 950,000 740,788 - -
2014 990,000 689,862 - -
2015 1,050,000 636,312 - -
2016-2020 6,025,000 2,348,001 - -
2021-2025 5,220,000 635,905 - -
Total $ 15990,000 § 6,675,637 $ 912273 § 27,890

(4) EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS

Nonuniformed Emplovyees

All full-time nonuniformed City employees are provided pension benefits through a defined contribution
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). The employee begins participation
on the date of employment. Employees are required to contribute a minimum of 3% of their salary with an
optional maximum of up to 100% of their salary, subject to Internal Revenue Service limitations. The
City’s contribution is determined by the City Council each year, based on a minimum of 6% of employee
salaries. The City’s contribution for each employee begins vesting after 5 years and is fully vested after 10
years. If an employee terminates before becoming fully vested, the employer’s confributions that are
forfeited may be used to reduce the City’s current-period contributions requirement.

Salary deferred under the plan is not available to employees until termination, death, retirement or
unforeseeable emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property, and rights
purchased with these amounts and all income attributable to these amounts remain the property of the City
without being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan until such amounts are paid or made
available to the employees, subject only to the claims of the City’s general creditors.
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The plan is administered by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund. Neither the Oklahoma Municipal
Retirement Fund nor the City have a liability for losses under the plan, but have the duty of due care that
would be required of an ordinary prudent investor.

The total contribution, net of forfeitures, for the year ended June 30, 2011, was $1,758,375 which
consisted of $865,666 (net of $141,688 in forfeitures) from the City and $892,709 from employees.

The Hospital also participates in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Defined Contribution Plan, All
full-time employees of the Hospital are covered. The Hospital and employees contribute 6% and 3%,
respectively of eligible salaries into the plan. Contributions, net of forfeitures, were approximately
$1,498,000 from the Hospital and $749,000 from employees for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Forfeitures of $137,361 were applied to the Hospital’s required 6% contribution.

Defined Benefit (Retiree) Plan In 1985, the City replaced a defined benefit plan with the current defined
contribution 401(a) plan. The assets of the defined benefit plan were apportioned to all eligible
participants in the plan as of June 30, 1985, except those assets attributable to retired participants as of
June 30, 1985, which were used to fund the future retirement benefits of such retired participants. The
balances and activity of this plan are reported in the City’s financial statements as a fiduciary fund,
“Retiree-only defined benefit plan”. Although this plan is considerably overfunded, the plan assets are
not available for City use until such time as the obligation to pay the remaining retirees is exhausted.

As of January 1, 2011 the funded status of the defined benefit plan was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liabilitiy (AAL) $ 74,967
Actuarial value of plan assets 5,460,468
(Overfunded) actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ (5,385,501)
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 7284.0%
Annual covered payroll (active plan members) N/A
UAAL as a percentage of annual coverd payroll N/A

Oklahoma Police And Firefighter’s Pension And Retirement Systems

The City of Stillwater, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit plans on behalf of the police officers and firefighters. The Systems are funded by
contributions from participants, employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as
necessary. The following is a summary of eligibility factors, contribution methods, and benefit provisions.

Oklahoma Police Oklahoma Firefighter’s
Pension and Pension and
Retirement System Retirement System
Obtaining separately issued Police Pension and Retirement Firefighters Pension & Retirement
£ separately 1001 N.W. 63" St. Suite 605 4545 N. Lincoln Blvd. Suite 265

financial statements Oklahoma City Ok 73116-7335 Oklahoma City, Ok. 73105-3414
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Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing contribution
obligations and benefits

Employee’s required contribution
rate (percent of covered payroll)

City’s required contribution rate
(percent of covered payroll)

State obligation

Periods required to vest

Eligibility and benefits for
distribution (full-time)

Deferred retirement option

Provisions for:
Cost of living adjustments
(normal retirement)

Death (duty, non-duty, post
retirement)

Disability (duty, non-duty)

Cost of living allowances

Oklahoma Police
Pension and Retirement System
(continued)

All full-time officers, employed by
a participating municipality, not
less than 21 years of age or more
than 45 years of age when hired

State Statute

8%
13%

State appropriation to fund the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability

10 years

20 years credited service, 2.5% of
final average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered,
if vested at or after age 50 or after
10 but before 20 years of credited
service with reduced benefits

Yes. 20 years credited service with
additional option to participate in
deferred compensation plan
(Louisiana Plan)

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes
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Oklahoma Firefighter’s
Pension and Retirement System
(continued)

All full-time or voluntary
firefighters of a participants
municipality hired before age 45

State Statute

8%
13%

State appropriation to fund the
unfunded actuarial accrued
liability

10 years

20 years credited service, 2.5% of
final average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service with a
maximum of 30 years considered;
if vested at or after age 50 or after
10 but before 20 years of credited
service with reduced benefits

Yes. 20 years credited service with
continued service for a maximum
of 30 years

Yes

Yes
Yes

Yes



Retirement System

Trend Information:

Contributions required by State statute:

Oklahoma Police and Pension Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and
Retirement System Retirement System
City’s Required Percentage City’s Required Percentage
Fiscal Year Contribution Contributed Contribution Contributed
2008 $521,301 100% $540,976 100%
2009 556,387 100% 542,879 100%
2010 574,277 100% 583,934 100%
2011 569,206 100% 559,821 100%

Trend information, showing the progress of the Systems in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due, is presented in the respective separate annual financial reports of the Police and Firefighter
Pension Systems.

The total amount contributed to the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System and the Oklahoma
Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System by the State of Oklahoma on behalf of the City was
approximately $451,450 and $1,027,609, respectively.

Related Party Investments

As of June 30, 2011 the Systems held no related-party investments of the City or of its
related entities.

(5) RISK MANAGEMENT

As of June 30, 2011, claims outstanding against the City and its public authorities were $1,934,084 and is
accrued under the heading “Accrued Liabilities” in the accompanying financial statements. Liabilities
were accrued for tort claims, general liability claims and employee health insurance claims. The City is
self-insured for group medical, general liability, workers compensation, unemployment, and property
damage. The City has a reinsurance policy which limits the City’s liability for major medical to $100,000
per individual. The City also maintains an aggregate reimbursement policy which limits the total liability
of the City for major medical to $5,100,000. The City purchases conventional insurance for excess losses
for general liability and property damage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for
the current year or the three prior years. The claims liability for health claims incurred but not reported is
estimated by management using a five-month claims lag analysis. The claims liability for workers
compensation claims and judgments is estimated using information provided by a third party administrator
based on their opinion of probable outcome of litigation. The balance of the claim liability is expected to
be paid within the next year and is included in accrued liabilities on the statement of net assets. All claims
are paid from the consolidated cash account, funded by the General Fund. Changes in the balances of
claims liabilities during fiscal years 2010-2011 and 2009-2010 were as follows:

63



Current Year

Beginning Claims and Ending
Liability Changes in Claim Liability
Balance Estimates Payments Balance

2010-2011 $ 2,150,375 $ 4,846,887 $ 5,063,178 $ 1,934,084
2009-2010 1,406,554 5,253,540 4,509,719 2,150,375

The Hospital is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters;
employee disability and employee health, dental, and accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is
purchased for claims arising from such matters other than those related to employee health care benefits
and workers compensation claims. Settled claims have not exceeded any commercial insurance coverage
in any three preceding years.

The Hospital partially self-insures the cost of employee health care benefits as it purchases annual stop-
loss insurance coverage for specific claims in excess of $100,000 up to $1,000,000. The Hospital
purchases commercial stop-loss insurance coverage for total claims in the aggregate amount of $100,000
up to $1,000,000. A provision is accrued for self-insured employee health claims and workers’
compensation claims, including other claims reported and claims incurred but not yet reported. The
accruals are estimated based on consideration of prior claims experience, recently settled claims,
frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. It is reasonably possible that the estimates
will change by a material amount in the near term.

Activity in the Hospital’s accrued employee health and workers’ compensation claims liability during
2010 and 2009 is summarized as follows

Current Year

Beginning Claims and Ending

Liability Changes in Claim Liability

Balance Estimates Payments Balance
2010 $ 1,250,000 $ 3,904,525 $ 4,122,510 $ 1,032,015
2009 1,258,177 5,751,081 5,759,258 1,250,000

(6) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, LITIGATION AND COMMITTMENTS

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required, and certain costs and revenues
may be questioned as to how they have been reported to the grantor agency. Such audits could lead to
reimbursement to the grantor agency. The City’s management believes disallowances, if any, will be
immaterial to the accompanying basic financial statements.

Various claims and lawsuits are pending against the City. In the opinion of management, some of these
may result in monetary judgments against the City. The claims result from sewer backup, police activities,
employment disputes, and other claims seeking declaratory/injunctive relief. Although the outcome of
these claims and lawsuits is not presently determinable, the amount of judgments could range from under
$25,000 to in excess of $100,000. The City has not recorded any accrual for these claims.

The City was involved in a taxpayer lawsuit, Dedrickson vs. City, et al, Case No. CJ-2008-97, District
Court of Payne County. The suit alleged the Stillwater Utilities Authority unlawfully diverted earmarked
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tax revenues into the City’s general fund. Plaintiffs had asked the court to order the City to pay $54
million to the SUA. A non-jury trial took place November 1-3, 2010, in district court. On December 13,
2010, the court ruled that no diversion occurred and granted judgment to the City and the SUA. The
plaintiffs filed an appeal which is pending before the Oklahoma Supreme Court. Management believes the
appeal is without merit and intends to vigorously defend this action.

Included in the July 2006 purchase agreement between the Authority and Rural Water Corporation No.3,
the Authority agreed to consolidate the two water distribution systems. This consolidation includes
making improvements and upgrades to pump stations and adding additional water lines to specified areas
within the system. The improvements and upgrades are to be completed by the Authority within five years
of system acquisition.

In September 2010, the Rural Water Advisory Board, the Rural Water Corporation No.3 Board, and the
Authority’s Trustees approved amendment of the initial July 2006 purchase agreement. The amended
agreement identifies more specific improvements and upgrades to be made to the system and provides a
revised timeline for completion. All improvements and upgrades are subject to funding availability.

The Hospital has commitments for noncallable operating leases for primary care outpatient offices which
expire in various years through October 2019. These leases generally contain renewal options for periods
ranging from five to ten years and require the Hospital to pay all executory costs (property taxes,
maintenance and insurance). Future minimum lease payments at December 31, 2010, were approximately:

2011 $ 748,000

2012 728,000

2013 669,000

2014 686,000

2015 690,000
2016-2019 1,684,000
$ 5,205,000

(7) POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 4, the City sponsors and
administers a self-funded, single employer defined benefit plan providing postretirement health care
benefits to all employees who retire from the City on or after attaining age 55 with at least 10 years of
service. The election to participate must be made at the time of separation from service. At June 30,
2011, 10 retiree-related participants (retirees, and/or spouses, and/or families) were participating in the
City health care plan. There were no retirees who met the eligibility requirements at June 30 who did not
choose to participate. The City requires a monthly premium based on City-wide claim trends of the
previous fiscal year. The premium rate for retirees is adjusted each July 1*. Upon monthly payment of
this premium, the City covers all medical expenses just as for active employees on a pay-as-you-go basis.
Coverage is available until the first day of the month in which the retiree reaches his or her Medicare
eligibility age (currently 65). If the spouse of a retiree is covered at the time the retiree comes off of the
plan at age 65, that spouse is COBRA-eligible until age 65 or for 36 months, whichever is less. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, expenditures of $95,264 were attributable to postretirement health
care (excluding prescription coverage).

Funding Policy The City funds healthcare benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis utilizing a third party
administrator, Blue Cross Blue Shield of Oklahoma. Eligible employees are required to pay set premiums
for a portion of the cost, with the City subsidizing the remaining costs. Contribution requirements of
active employees are established and amended as needed by the City Council. Premium rates for retirees
and COBRA participants are set by City management upon recommendations provided by the third party
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administrators and the City’s re-insurance agent. The required monthly contribution rates for plan
members for fiscal year 2011 range from $0 to $240 for active employees, $366 to $1,304 for retired
participants, and $374 to $1,330 for COBRA participants.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation The City’s annual other post employment benefits (OPEB)
cost in the first year of implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post-Employment Benefits Other than
Pensions, is equal to the annual required contribution (ARC). In subsequent years, the annual OPEB cost
will be equal to the ARC plus an adjustment if the ARC is not funded each year. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost of each year plus
any unfunded actuarial liabilities as amortized over thirty years,

The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount
contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation to the retiree health plan:

Annual required contribition $ 859,081
Interest on prior year net OPEB obligation 70,484
Adjustment to annual required contribution (139,565)
Annual OPEB cost 790,000
Employer contributions 103,155
Increase in net OPEB obligation 686,845
Beginning OPEB obligation 1,468,419
Ending OPEB obligation $ 2,155,264

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net
OPEB obligation for the current and prior years are as follows:

Percentage of

Fiscal Year Annual Net Employer Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ended OPEB Cost Contribution Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/2011 $ 790,000 $ 103,155 14.0% $ 2,125,264
6/30/2010 887,362 77985 8.7% 1,468,419
6/30/2009 724,310 65,268 9.0% 659,042

Funding Status and Funding Progress The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized using a level
dollar amortization over 30 years, beginning July 1, 2008. As of July 1, 2010, the funded status of the
retiree health plan was as follows:

Actuarial accrued liabilitiy (AAL) $ 6,237,065
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $ 6,237,065
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/A AL) 0.00%
Annual covered payroll (active plan members) $ 24,045,000
UAAL as a percentage of annual coverd payroll 25.9%
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare cost trends.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future.

In the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2011, the projected unit credit (PUC) actuarial cost method was
used to measure accruing costs. Under the principals of the PUC method, the actuarial present value of the
projected benefits of each individual included in the valuation is allocated pro-rata to each year of service
between entry age and assumed exit. The actuarial valuation utilized several significant assumptions
affecting the valuation results including the medical claims costs assumptions, the medical trend
assumptions, and the discount rate. The resulting annual required contribution was based on a 4.8%
discount rate and a medical trend rate beginning at 6% in 2010 and grading to 5% in 2013. Additionally,
it was assumed that 50% of future retired participants would opt for retiree health care coverage. It was
also assumed that 50% of future retirees who opt for health care coverage would cover a spouse at
retirement.

(8) REVENUES PLEDGED

SUA has pledged future sales tax revenues to repay a $6,010,000 note issued in December 2007 and a
$6,075,000 note issued in September 2010 to finance transportation improvement projects identified in the
2006 Transportation Sales Tax Ordinance. The note is payable solely from sales tax revenue equal to one
half of the one-half cent transportation sales tax collected by the City and transferred to SUA by way of
the Sales Tax Agreement. Sales taxes are projected to produce 100 percent of the debt service
requirements over the life of the note. Total principal and interest remaining on the 2007 note is
$4,679,228, payable semiannually commencing December 2008 and concluding December 2016. Total
principal and interest remaining on the 2010 note is $5,868,828 payable semiannually commencing
December 2010 and concluding December 2016. For the current year, total sales tax revenues were
$1,645,975.

SUA has pledged future sales tax revenues and future utility revenues, net of operating and maintenance
expenses, to repay debt obligations. Proceeds from the debt issues financed the refunding of prior debt
obligations of SUA and the Stillwater Public Golf Authority and refinanced outstanding balances of notes
to the OWRB. The debt obligations are payable from the one cent sales tax revenue dedicated to SUA by
City Ordinance No. 1835 and from net revenues derived from the existence and operation of the utility
system to the extent sales tax revenue fails to cover the debt obligations. Pledged revenues are projected
to produce 125 percent of the debt service requirements over the life of the debt. For the current year,
sales tax revenues were $6,583,900 and net revenues were $19,291,644.

Ad valorem revenue can only be collected to pay principal and interest on general obligation bonds or
court assessed judgments. Levying of an ad valorem tax requires a vote of the citizens. The City had
pledged future ad valorem taxes to repay the $8,500,000 2000 General Obligation bonds and the
$6,470,000 2001 General Obligation bonds used to provide financing for the construction and remodel of
the City Hall/Police building. These bonds were refunded during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. The
refunding bonds of $8,390,000 are due in payments commencing June, 2011 through June, 2021. The
total principal and interest payable for the remainder of the life of these bonds is $9,198,600. Ad valorem
taxes received in the current year were $1,457,534. Debt service payments of $1,160,408 in the current
fiscal year were 80% of the total ad valorem taxes received.
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The following is a summary of the debt issues requiring a pledge of revenues:
Remaining Current Year

Issue Issue Maturity Principal Principal

Debt Issue Amount Date Date and Interest and Interest
2005 Refunding Series Bonds $ 12,965,000 May 2005 Oct 2012 $ 4,973,625 $ 3,344,500
2007 Revenue Bonds 6,010,000 Dec 2007 Dec 2016 4,679,228 843,144
2010 Revenue Bonds 6,075,000 Sept 2010 Dec 2016 5,868,828 1,042,267
2002 OWRB SRF Note 3,413,483 Feb 2002 Sept 2021 1,842,250 180,267
2002 OWRB SRF Note 4,876,086 Dec 2002 Sept 2022 2,889,352 258,727
2005 OWRB Fixed Rate Note 7,620,000 Jun 2005 Mar 2025 7,229,937 513,520
2009 OWRB DWSRF Note 11,645,000 Nov 2009 Sept 2032 5,808,250 68,234
2009 OWRB CWSRF Note 1,875,000 Nov 2009 Sept 2030 1,390,107 55,308
2010 Refunding General Obligation Bonds 8,390,000 June 2011 June 2021 9,198,600 1,160,408

(9) COMPONENT UNIT BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND ASSOCIATED GOODWILL

On December 21, 2009, the Hospital acquired 100% of the assets of Stillwater Surgery Center, L.L.C., an
outpatient ambulatory surgery center providing surgery services to patients of the surrounding geographic
area. The results of the surgery center’s operations have been included in the financial statements of the
Hospital since that date.

The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the assets and liabilities is attributable to goodwill.
Goodwill will be amortized on the straight-line basis over 15 years. Amortization expense is estimated to
be approximately $388,000 each year through 2024.

(10) COMPONENT UNIT INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Hospital’s investments in joint ventures relate to a 8% ownership in Heartland Healthcare Reciprocal
Risk Retention Group which is accounted for using the equity method of accounting; a 60% ownership in
Stillwater Medical Center Imaging, LL.C which is accounted for using the equity method (as the Authority
only controls 50% of the entity); a 50% ownership in Women First, LL.C which is accounted for using the
equity method; and a 9% ownership in Fresenius Medical Care-Stillwater, LLC which is accounted for
using the cost method.

Heartland Healthcare Reciprocal Risk Retention Group (Heartland) provides insurance coverage. The
Hospital paid approximately $208,000 to purchase its professional liability (medical malpractice) and
general liability insurance from Heartland during the year ended December 31, 2010. The Hospital’s
investment in Heartland was $686,127 at December 31, 2010.

Stillwater Medical Imaging, LL.C (SMI) owns and operates MRI, CT and other imaging equipment. The
Hospital purchases imaging services for its patients from the joint venture. Included in accounts payable
of the Hospital is approximately $539,600 at December 31, 2010 due to the joint venture. During the year
ended December 31, 2010, the Hospital earned approximately $1,030,000 in fees from billing and
collection services related to SMI. The Hospital’s investment in SMI was $1,276,287 at December 31,
2010.

The Hospital purchases digital mammography and bone density services for its patients from Women
First, LLC. Approximately $54,000 is included in accounts payable of the Hospital at December 31, 2010
due to the joint venture. During the year ended December 31, 2010, Women First reimbursed the Hospital
approximately $198,000 for expenses the Hospital incurred to manage its operations. The Hospital’s
investment in Women First was $120,210 at December 31, 2010.
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Fresenius Medical Care-Stillwater, LLC provides dialysis services to residents of Stillwater and the
surrounding area. The Hospital did not have any transactions with Fresenius Medical Care-Stillwater,
LLC during the year ended December 31, 2010. The Hospital’s investment in Fresenius was $235,495 at
December 31, 2010.

Complete financial statements of these joint venture entities may be obtained by contacting the Hospital’s
management.

(11) RESTATEMENT OF BEGINNING FUND BALANCE

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54: “Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions™ has, as its objective, the improvement of the usefulness, including
the understandability of fund balance information by providing more clearly defined fund balance
categories and by clarifying fund type definitions in order to provide users a clearer picture of the purposes
that the government has chosen to use particular reported fund balances. As a result of the application of
this statement, the Stormwater fund of the City, which had previously been classified as a Special Revenue
Governmental fund type, is now classified as a part of the General Fund of the City. Beginning fund
balance of $724,479 was thus reclassified from a Special Revenue Nonmajor Governmental Fund to the
General Fund.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) -- GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual from Final Budget
REVENUES
Sales tax $ 22,942,879 $ 22,942,879 $ 24,789,397 $ 1,846,518
Other taxes 2,094,800 2,094,800 2,452,386 357,586
Intergovernmental 51,250 1,089,446 477,824 (611,622)
Charges for Services 1,341,000 1,341,000 1,421,633 80,633
Fines and forfeits 814,500 814,500 870,172 55,672
Fees and rentals 1,377,300 1,377,300 1,450,161 72,861
Investment income - - 46,900 46,900
Licenses and permits 169,000 169,000 187,563 18,563
Other miscellaneous revenue 578,400 1,163,055 1,307,241 144,186
Total revenues 29,369,129 30,991,980 33,003,277 2,011,297
EXPENDITURES
Current
Public Safety:
Police:
Personal services 9,329,541 9,288,797 8,651,656 637,141
Materials and supplies 675,139 647,739 579,010 68,729
Contract services 405,700 475,227 270,436 204,791
Fire:
Personal services 6,673,886 6,683,249 6,185,031 498,218
Materials and supplies 297,017 293,017 204,320 88,697
Contract services 423,117 379,117 338,637 40,480
Total public safety 17,804,400 17,767,146 16,229,090 1,538,056
Recreation and culture:
Parks and recreation:
Personal services 3,402,777 3,397,961 3,153,204 244,757
Materials and supplies 741,226 744,096 598,936 145,160
Contract services 551,225 474,180 359,083 115,097
Library:
Personal services 1,084,582 1,081,135 1,018,227 62,908
Materials and supplies 198,589 210,049 203,059 6,990
Contract services 130,145 135,091 129,979 5,112
Total recreation and culture 6,108,544 6,042,512 5,462,488 580,024
continued
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) -- GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(continued)
Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual from Final Budget

General Government:

Personal services 6,139,654 5,953,871 1,374,486 4,579,385

Materials and supplies 154,400 153,030 137,139 15,891

Contract services 3,212,194 3,230,048 1,326,248 1,903,800
Total General government 9,506,248 9,336,949 2,837,873 6,499,076
Financial administration:

Personal services 579,561 575,191 526,387 48,804

Materials and supplies 72,600 58,400 54,727 3,673

Contract services 30,180 46,880 19,089 27,791
Total financial administrtion 682,341 680,471 600,203 80,268

Public works administration:

Personal services 490,559 505,157 471,745 33,412

Materials and supplies 101,206 101,206 90,514 10,692

Contract services 35,000 48,564 27,117 21,447
Total public works administration 626,765 654,927 589,376 65,551
Street and sewers:

Personal services 1,573,654 1,561,786 1,377,971 183,815

Materials and supplies 645,178 655,787 565,846 89,941

Contract services 577,800 613,998 149,634 464,364
Total street and sewers 2,796,632 2,831,571 2,093,451 738,120
Human services:
Health:

Personal services - - - -

Materials and supplies 129,959 122,959 71,879 45,080

Contract services 69,618 72,618 56,657 15,961
Community Development:

Personal services 1,194,720 1,180,298 1,099,829 80,469

Materials and supplies 32,475 33,875 28,522 5,353

Contract services 103,500 113,100 84,755 28,345
Total human services 1,530,272 1,522,850 1,347,642 175,208

continued
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) -- GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

(continued)
Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual from Final Budget
Economic development:
Personal services 17,040 96,082 93,185 2,897
Materials and supplies - 26,250 2,996 23,254
Contract services 1,130,000 1,024,432 326,443 697,989
Total economic devepopment 1,147,040 1,146,764 422,624 724,140
Capital Outlay:
Police 68,381 88,381 16,106 72,275
Fire - 572,810 447,655 125,155
Recreation and culture - 501,551 164,340 337,211
General Government - 70,000 67,699 2,301
Public works operation - - - -
Human Services - - - -
Economic development - 22,952 - 22,952
Street and sewers 450,000 1,290,767 712,839 577,928
518,381 2,546,461 1,408,639 1,137,822
Total expenditures 40,720,622 42,529,651 30,991,386 11,538,264
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (11,351,493) (11,537,671) 2,011,890 13,549,561
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES):

Transfers in 18,527,757 18,552,757 10,685,126 (7,867,631)
Transfers out (13,469,011) (13,559,011) (10,218,975) 3,340,036
Total other financing sources (uses) 5,058,746 4,993,746 466,151 (4,527,595)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

and other sources over (under)

expenditures and other uses (6,292,747) (6,543,925) 2,478,041 9,021,966
FUND BALANCES, beginning 3,310,849 3,310,849 3,310,849 -
FUND BALANCES, ending $ (2,981,898) §$ (3,233,076) $ 5,788,890 $ 9,021,966
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES -- BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGET BASIS) -- TRANSPORTATION FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Original Final Variance
Budget Budget Actual from Final Budget
REVENUES
Investment income $ - $ - $ 42,491 $ 42,491
Miscellaneous - - 15 15
Total revenues - - 42,506 42,506
EXPENDITURES
Street and sewers:
Personal services 217,481 217,481 209,655 7,826
Materials and supplies 43,800 44 800 32,495 12,305
Contract services 2,000 2,000 - 2,000
Total street and sewers 263,281 264,281 242,150 22,130
Capital outlay
Street and sewers - 13,304,239 1,644,172 11,660,067
Total expenditures 263,281 13,568,520 1,886,322 11,682,197
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (263,281) (13,568,520) (1,843,816) 11,724,702
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES):
Transfers in 5,728,536 11,470,765 6,109,869 (5,360,896)
Transfers out (1,597,716) (1,597,716) (1,638,523) (40,807)
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,130,820 9,873,049 4,471,346 (5,401,703)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other uses 3,867,539 (3,695,471) 2,627,530 6,323,000
FUND BALANCES, beginning 3,382,031 3,382,031 3,382,031 -
FUND BALANCES, ending $ 7,249,570 $ (313,440) $ 6,009,561 $ 6,323,000

73



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
JUNE 30, 2011

BUDGETARY COMPLIANCE

Budget Law

The City operates under the Oklahoma Municipal Budget Act of 1979 (the “Budget Act”). The
budget, as adopted by the City Commission, is filed with the State of Oklahoma Office of the
Auditor and Inspector. Budget amendments or supplements made during the year are
recommended by the City Manager and must be approved by the City Commission. An amended
budget is filed before year-end with the agency mentioned above. Current year amendments are
not material in relation to the original appropriated amounts. The budget and actual comparisons
presented in the financial statements include the legally amended budgets for the respective funds.

The City uses the following procedures to establish the budgetary data reflected in the
accompanying general purpose financial statements:

Prior to June 1, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget
for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed
expenditures and the means of financing them.

Public hearings are conducted at regular commission meetings to obtain taxpayer comments.
Public hearings are held no later than 15 days prior to the beginning of the budget year.

Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through the passage of a motion by the City
Commission.

The Budget Act specifies that the governing body may grant authorization to the City Manager to
transfer budgeted amounts between departments within any fund; however, any revision that
alters the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Commission.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the
General Fund, special revenue funds, Debt Service Fund and the capital projects funds. Budgets
are legally adopted for General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital
Projects Fund, Internal Service Funds and Enterprise Funds.

Budgets as adopted by the City Commission are prepared on a cash basis except for accrued
expenses (other than vacation and sick pay) which are treated as expenditures.

Budgetary control is maintained by department and by the following category of expenditures:
personnel services, materials and supplies, other services and charges, capital outlay and debt
service. Expenditures and encumbrances may not legally exceed appropriations at the department
level. All transfers of appropriations between funds and supplemental appropriations require City
Commission approval. The City Manager may transfer appropriations between object categories
within a fund with City Commission approval. Supplemental appropriations must also be filed
with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector.

All encumbered appropriations lapse at year end and are rebudgeted in the following budget year
where appropriate. Unencumbered appropriations also lapse at year end.

The City prepared and adopted a legal annual budget for all funds.
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In accordance with Title 60 of the Oklahoma State Statutes, the Stillwater Medical Center
Authority is required to prepare an annual budget and submit a copy to the City as beneficiary.
However, there are no further requirements such as form of budget, approval of the budget or
definition of a legal level of control.

The Stillwater Convention and Visitors Bureau presents a budget to the commission in
conjunction with the Stillwater Chamber of Commerce. The Chamber of Commerce presents a
budget in order to satisfy the requirements of the agreement with the City to receive economic
development funds. However, there are not further requirements such as form of budget, approval
of the budget or definition of legal level of control.

Budgetary Compliance

For the year ended June 30, 2011 the City complied, in all material respects, with the applicable
budget laws.

Reconciliation of budgetary basis and GAAP basis amounts

The City Commission adopts annual operating budgets for the General Fund, special revenue
funds, Debt Service Fund and capital projects funds. The City budgets revenues on the basis
of cash receipts. For financial reporting purposes, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. For budgetary and financial purposes, expenditures are recognized as incurred.

The following summary reconciles revenues for the year from the budgetary basis to the
GAAP basis of reporting:

General Transportation
Fund Improvement
Revenues on budget basis $ 33,003,277 $ 42,506
Revenues received
during fiscal year and
measurable and available
at June 30, 2010 (5,327,032) -
Revenues received
during fiscal year and
measurable and available
at June 30, 2011 4,738,009 -
Revenues on GAAP basis $ 32,414,254 $ 42,506
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CITY OF STILLWATER

Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2011

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial Accrued  Actuarial Unfunded  Funded UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Value of Assets AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (b/a) Payroll Covered Payroll
7/1/2010 $ 6,237,065 $ - $6,237,065 0.0% $ 24,045,000 26%
7/1/2008 5,535,944 - 5,535,944  0.0% 25,600,000 22%
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CITY OF STILLWATER
Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2011

DEFINED BENEFIT (RETIREE) PLAN

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial Accrued  Actuarial Unfunded Funded UAAL asa
Actuarial Liability (AAL) Value of Assets AAL (UAAL) Ratio Covered Percentage of
Valuation Date (a) (b) (a-b) (b/a)  Payroll Covered Payroll
1/1/2011 $ 74,967 § 5,460,468  (5,385,501) 7283.8% N/A N/A
1/1/2010 76,306 4,800,205  (4,723,899) 6290.7% N/A N/A
1/1/2009 102,921 4,070,506  (3,967,585) 3955.0% N/A N/A
1/1/2008 134,253 5,593,591  (5,459,338) 4166.5% N/A N/A
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT - to account for funds used for the
improvements in low-income portions of the community. Funding is provided by the Community
Development Block Grant Small Cities Set Aside program and local matching funds.

LIBRARY MATERIALS ENHANCEMENT - to account for the proceeds from the sale of the
old library building.

DEBT SERVICE - to account for the accumulation of ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for the
payment of general long-term principal, interest and related costs.

POLICE/MUNICIPAL BUILDING BONDS - to account for the construction and purchase of
furnishing for a new police building and renovation of the municipal building financed through
general obligation bonds issue.
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NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

AIRPORT - to account for the operation of the Stillwater Municipal Airport including capital

additions and improvements financed through federal and state grant proceeds and City
contributions.

STILLWATER INDUSTRIAL REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY - to account for expenditures

for industrial redevelopment. Financing is provided from federal grants, federal loans, city
contributions and citizen participation.




CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS--NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2011
Stillwater
Industrial
Redevelopment
ASSETS Airport Authority Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 66,024 $ 276,936 342,960
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 477 337 814
Due from other funds - 6,348 6,348
Installment loans receivable - 4,038 4,038
Leasehold receivable - 34,442 34,442
Inventories 143,639 - 143,639
Total current assets 210,140 322,101 532,241
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Leasehold receivable - 205,000 205,000
Due from other governments 70,642 - 70,642
Capital assets, nondepreciable 1,465,518 - 1,465,518
Capital assets, depreciable, net 11,868,753 7,952 11,876,705
Total noncurrent assets 13,404,913 212,952 13,617,865
Total assets 13,615,053 535,053 14,150,106
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 14,401 4,571 18,972
Accrued expenses 9,677 2,046 11,723
Accrued compensated absences 2,308 489 2,797
Due to other funds 2,246 2,418 4,664
Advances from other funds - 34,442 34,442
Refundable grant obligations - 15,322 15,322
Unearned revenue - 6,347 6,347
Total current liabilities 28,632 65,635 94,267
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Advances from other funds - 205,000 205,000
Compensated absences 25,255 1,651 26,906
Customer deposits 11,680 - 11,680
Total noncurrent liabilities 36,935 206,651 243,586
Total labilities 65,567 272,286 337,853
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 13,334,271 7,952 13,342,223
Restricted Donation - 2,712 2,712
Unrestricted (deficit) 215,215 252,103 467,318
Total net assets $ 13,549,486 $ 262,767 13,812,253
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS -NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Stillwater
Industrial
Redevelopment
Alirport Authority Total
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services $ 1,141,578 $ - $ 1,141,578
Other 287,572 15,671 303,243
Total operating revenues 1,429,150 15,671 1,444 821
OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating and maintenance 1,420,912 239,091 1,660,003
Depreciation 710,504 936 711,440
Amortization 976 - 976
Total operating expenses 2,132,392 240,027 2,372,419
Operating income (loss) (703,242) (224,356) (927,598)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment income 2,357 1,466 3,823
Net nonoperating revenues 2,357 1,466 3,823
Income (loss) before
capital contributions and transfers (700,885) (222,890) (923,775)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions 299,882 144,996 444878
Transfers in 100,000 143,993 243,993
Transfers out (19,270) (25,000) (44,270)
Net capital contributions and transfers 380,612 263,989 644,601
Change in net assets (320,273) 41,099 (279,174)
NET ASSETS, beginning 13,869,759 221,668 14,091,427
NET ASSETS, ending $ 13,549,486 $ 262,767 $ 13,812,253
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS --NONMAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Stillwater
Industrial
Redevelopment
Airport Authority Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 1,141,429 $ - $ 1,141,429
Payments to suppliers (1,277,657) (193,088) (1,470,745)
Payments to employees (293,312) (61,701) (355,013)
Inter activity-payments to other funds (1,891) (41,667) (43,558)
Other receipts (payments) 147,520 5,696 153,216
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (283,911) (290,760) (574,671)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from (to) other funds 80,730 263,988 344718
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities 80,730 263,988 344,718
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions 299,795 - 299,795
Purchases of assets (359,764) - (359,764)
Principal (paid) received on capital debt (4,000) 48,038 44,038
Net cash provided by (used for) capital activities (63,969) 48,038 (15,931)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest 2,357 1,225 3,582
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 2,357 1,225 3,582
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents. (264,793) 22,491 (242,302)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 330,817 254,445 585,262
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 66,024 $ 276,936 $ 342,960
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used by)
operating activities
Operating income (loss) $ (703,242) $ (224,356) $  (927,598)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation expense 710,504 936 711,440
Amortization expense 976 - 976
Changes in assets and liabilities
Receivables, net (149) 7,533 7,384
Inventories (78,229) - (78,229)
Accounts and other payables (215,130) (73,186) (288,316)
Change in deferred operating revenues - 2,371) 2,371)
Accrued expenses 1,359 684 2,043
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (283,911) $  (290,760) $  (574,671)
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2010 Additions Reductions 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 74,263 $ 239,784 $ 271,577 $ 42,470
Pooled investments 131,218 - 4,557 126,661
Other investments 260,000 70,000 70,000 260,000
Assessment receivable 5,524 166,353 171,072 805
Total assets $ 471,005 $ 476,137 $ 517,206 $ 429,936
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 2,900 $ 30,914 $ 30,577 $ 3,237
Amounts held in escrow 468,105 475,800 517,206 426,699
Total liabilities $ 471,005 $ 506,714 $ 547,783 $ 429,936
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(in thousands of dollars)

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy

Collected on Prior

Years' Levies (1)

Fiscal Year Taxes Levied for the year Amount Percentage of Levy Amount
2002 1,786 1,727 97% 3
2003 2,214 2,087 94% 3
2004 2,149 2,084 97% 78
2005 1,982 1,942 98% 15
2006 1,417 1,433 101% 18
2007 1,320 1,286 97% 19
2008 1,344 1,294 96% 64
2009 1,436 1,281 89% 151
2010 1,389 1,365 98% 21
2011 1,456 1,420 98% 40

(1) Collections of property taxes in Oklahoma are made at the County level. Information received from Payne County for

collected delinquent amounts does not include the original levy year.

Note: Total collections for July through October, 2011 are $3 thousand in current taxes and $9 thousand in

delinquent taxes.
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CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING SALES TAX RATES (1)

LAST TEN CALENDAR YEARS
Fiscal Year City of Stillwater (2) State of Oklahoma Payne County (3)
2002 2.00%/2.50% 4.50% 0.50%
2003 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%
2004 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%
2005 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%
2006 2.50% 4.50% 0.50%/0.75%
2007 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%
2008 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%
2009 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%
2010 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%
2011 2.50% 4.50% 0.75%

(1) Sales tax is a major revenue source of the General Fund of the City of Stillwater. Sales tax
is collected by local merchants and remitted to the State of Oklahoma Tax Commission by the
15th of the month following its receipt. The Tax Commission returns the City's portion of the
sales tax to the city by the 15th of the following month. Beginning in 1979, an additional 1%
sales tax was levied by the city for use by the Stillwater Utilities Authority (SUA), i.e., a Public
Trust which operates the water, sewer and electric utilities of the City. The sales tax dedicated
for the SUA is received by the City's General Fund and is immediately transferred to SUA.

(2) The City portion of sales tax increased to 2.50% effective October 1, 2001. The additional .50% is

dedicated to fund transportation (street) projects. This additional tax will expire September 30, 2016.

(3) Stillwater is located in Payne County which initiated a .5% sales tax effective January 1, 1994.
The .5% sales tax expired and was replaced with a .375% sales tax effective January 1, 1999.
The Payne County sales tax was increased to .5% effective April 1, 2000.

The Payne County sales tax was increased to 0.75% effective April 1, 2006.

97



%0%
SEYI0L°91
0st

9%
LTS 0SE'ST
PEVLL

%1
€S6°TLL'S
856°1

1102

%6¢
99T°66T°S1
LET

%9%
0SH0TL LT
08Z°L1

%S1
YSTYI6'S
956°1

010¢T

%0%
LOSSETST
LET

%Sy
9L5€6L°91
090°L1

%81
$S6°184°S
0Z6°1

600¢C

%lv
60T°SLY'ST
344

%St
PPL6£9°91
¥L8°91

Yov 1
884°6€T°S
£L8°1

3002

%ty
9€$°957°91
0zT

V24
S0L°€08°91
06991

%¢1
$80°L60°S
1081

00T

%I¥
6£8°8TY H1
(414

%SY
LEE'LYY'ST
09L91

Y%l
LYSYOL'Y
0bL1

900C

%Ey
189°40T°¢1
90T

%t
98%°001°€1
81°91

%1
1L8'STI Y
$99°1

500C

%Et %y %t
91L°€89°T1 IP9°0€1°TT  001°9%C°C1
(4174 60T 807

%bh %bh %Ly
T98°LLYTL  LB6TETTT  8TF690°TI
950°91 80L°ST LOE'SY

%E1 %E1 %¢E1
8E9°LLSE 69S°LELE 09€°0LLE
! LTST S6¥°1

$00¢C £00C 7002

SAVHA TVOSI NAL LSV

ddAL A9 SATVS ANV SYFWNOLSND ALITILA OIYLOTTH
VYNOHVTIO YALVMTIILS 40 AL1ID

sajeS [enuUy [ej0] JO a3ejusoisg
sofeg [EnNUTY
SISOISNO ATIRUOUI SAY

sofeS [enUuY [B10] JO 938102015
sofes [enUUY
SIOUIOISTIO AJIUOWI 9AY

sa[es [enuwy 210 ], JO 93eiuadred
s3[eg [enuuy
SIOUIO}STIO AJUIUOUL 9AY

[euOnMISUL/jRLNSNpPU]

[enuapIssy

[eIOIOTITO))

98



%T'8T %T0€ %ILbE %t 6€ 34 %0°¢S %6°19 %S 0L %8'8L %06

06£°61 $ Sep6l $ Ll § IvISL $ 19T $ 101°01 § €I5L R $ oIl $ 6851 $

(c19°L) (06£°8) (0r0°6) (0£8°6) (0z9°01) O1F1D) (ooz'C) (066°C1) (08L7¢1) (0LS'%1)

S00°LZ ST8LT 789z 1L6%T 18€°¢T 11§°12T £TL61 9Tr 81 06%°L1 $ 65191 $

T10Z 010C 00C 300C 1002 9002 S00C y00C £00C 700T
06661 S urSrew jqop [eSoT
(s19°0) spuoq uone3iqo [elsuss urp[mq 2o1jod/[edounyy

sy 3gap o3 ajqeotdde 3qa(g -ss9T

S00°LT $ uopEN[BA PISSISSE JU JO %01 O}
‘97 uoKYag ‘01 S[IWIY ‘UoBmusuO) yelg Aq
poypu] ‘spuoq AN orqnduou J0 1G3p S[qEMOITY

1S0°0LT $ UOLJERBA PISSISSE 19N
1107 dB3X [edsL] 10} uopEnd[E) WISIEA 3G [8S0]

(spuvsnoy; ut)
SYVAA TYOSLINAL LSV
NOILVIAOANI NIDIVIN L TvOAT
VINOHVTAO YILVMTILLS 40 ALID

U] 393p Jo afevjusoiad e se
] Yy o) s[qeatjdde jqop 1ou (2101,

urSreut 3qap 1o

] 03 o[qeatjdde 1qap jou [e1O], - S5

I 399(T

99



30110 §,10SS9SSY AJUNO)) suAed - Sjunowe AJUno)) pue [00YoS ‘elep onjeA passassy :5201nos (§)
"SJUSWIO2ISE 90)ST] JO/PUR SAUNJUSIPUL pUoq Aq 9sn UI parownsay ()

‘posn sem AJUnood SIIUS oy JOJ Soes S[qexe} Y} O} UOTIB[aI Ul J9JBMI[NS Jo A1)
213 10 saes a[qexe; Jo a3ejusoiad oy ‘soxe) sofes YIm predal 1qp AJuno)) oY} Jo,] 'Pasn sem (SITUII] A0 9Y) PUo£aq SPU)XS YOTYM) JOLUSIP [00YIS 9} JO anjeA
Passasse atf} 03 UOTIB|SI UL I9jeMI[1S JO A1) oy urgum Axodoid passasse Jo a5ejusoied oy “soxe) Auxedoxd yyim predar 1qap 10 :suondwmnsse uonemnduwo) (7)

“I91BM[IIS JO A1) 213 Jo (Xe sofes eiA) suoned pue (soxe) Auadoid ein) soumo Ayedord oyy Aq suroq ST 3ey) 1qop [eIUeULISA0S Jo uontod ot}
$21BUINSS 2[NPayos SW], “A31D) o3 JO seurepunoq [es1sAyd auj puoAaq pusixs pue Iem]iis Jo 4110 943 JO [ opnjour Aunoy) sauked pue 10WsyJ [0oyos rremius (1)

LEC'EY $ 3qop SurddejisAc puE 10.1Ip [BIGT,
LET'L %00°001 LET'L $ 8Lt $ S19°%L $ 1GOP J921IP 19JEMIMS JO K1)
001°9¢ $ 1qop SwiddepaA0 - [BI0IGNS
188 %1S°L9 LSOET $ €977 $ 0zTEST $ (¥) Huoyny sanitoe] Aumo) sukeq
$3X%] safes I predar 3gaq
$8T°LT § %6¢7¢8 61L°TE $ ILYS $ 061°8€ $ (1) 91# 10MSK(J [00YOS Juspuadapu] 1NeM[[NS
soxe) Ayredoad mm predaa iga(q
1q2(q Suiddepreng SuoIR ] / SISUMQ Surpuesing (¢) s1qe[IEAY Surpueising spuog ") TEIUSWUISACD
Jo oreyg pajewinsg  Apedoid 1o1eming Jo A1) Spuog 19N [se)) 90IAISS 1G9

01 o1qeorjddy o8euso1og

(s4pjjop Jo spupsnoy] ut)
1102 ‘0€ ANNS A0 SV
(2) (1) 194d SFILIAILDV TVINTANITAOD DNIIIV TIFAO ANV LOTIId
VINOHV IO “YAILVMTIILS 40 ALID

100



uonesrqnd Jo oW} 18 [qB[IBAR JOU BIB(T 44

*% *% sk o) SEV'Y8S Oy S69°LTIT 0¥L°990°9C - 000°SLLY 000°ST9°L 11oc
LT'88L 889°SY % *x L8YVI09E  S6V'706°T T66'716°LT - 000°508°L 000°06£°8 010¢
19°66L €S9°LY %9'1 SOSPIET 786°€01°8¢  861°8¢6 V8L06E°LT - 000°S€EL 0T 000°0+0°6 600C
86916 9L6°9¥ %61 €6090€°C 9LT'LSO'cy  TI80€0‘T ¥9¥°909°81 - 000°06S°€T 000°0€8°6 800C
867¢06 €8¢y %0C 1S¥T01°C 8L8°016'Ty  T1L°€99°1 LOTLOEET - 000°0Z€°91 000°029°01 L00T
$$'S00°T vL9'SY %¥'C 6€1°6T6°T SS9LT6'SY  SOE°€9S'T 0S€60071 - 000°5¥6°81 000°01¥°T1 500¢
LY v81°1 0v6'TY %8'C €ES°6SLT 7S9°9L9°6Y  €S6°810°T 669°TOL YT 000°50S 000°0ST°1C 000°00Z°C1 ¢002
SO61€ET 0ZE'TY %¥'E 1S9°€79°1 STI‘C0SYS  TvL'6vET y8E'€ST 6T 000°010°T 000°006°6 000°066°CT $00¢
Tr8TY'l SELOY %Lt 8L9V9S‘T €LL9818S  010°€ST'I TOL'8LI0E 000°S8¥°1 000°06¥°T1 000°08L°€T £00T
85°€6€°1 60¥°0¥ %L'C 91L91S°] 0ST'€IE9S  TOV'9LE’T LYLT¥9°9T 000°0¥6°T 000°ST8°T1 000°0LS VT 00T

ende) vone[ndod owoou] (szefjop JuounuaA0D)  sasee] [ende) o[qeAed salON spuog spuog anuoAdy spuog uoneSiqQO JIesx [BoSL]
nJ1gedeeL [euosiod  Jo spuesnor) ui) Arewrd [B10L uoneSIqQ [eleusn [eIoURD)
Jo oBeua01eg oWIOOU] [BUOSIS]
se 1g9(q
SonIAOY odAl-ssaursng SOIALIOY
[BIUSTILIDAOL)

VINOHV IO MALVMTIILS 40 ALID

SAVHA TVOSIANAL LSV']
HdAL A9 1990 ONIANVISINO 40 SOILVY

101



uoneorqnd JO SUIY 18 9]GR[IBAR 10U BIR(] 4y

102

90°¢ 0LS‘L8YT *% ok 000°619°L - 000°S19°L T1oc
1433 Y8I'ELET $9°¢€81 889°CY 000°06€8 - 000°06£°8 010t
0¥ LY6°9€T°T 0L'681 €S9°LY 000°0+0°6 - 000°0¥0°6 600¢
697 6EV°L60°T 97°60C 9L6'9Y 000°0€8°6 - 000°0€8°6 800T
0S¢ €56°T€6°T 96'8CT €8€9¥ 00007901 - 000°079°01 L00T
£r'9 TILYLLT 18°6¥C vL9‘SY 000°01¥'T1 - 000°01¥°T1 900¢
9L 1660991 £6'C0¢ 0¥6°1Y 000°60L°TT 00050 000°00T°CT §00T
98'8 ¥b0°08S°1 8'8¢¢ 0zETY 000°000°71 000°010°T 000°066°C1 ¥00¢
evol oI vor'l YLyLE SELOY 000°69T°S 1 000°68+°1 000°08L°€T €00¢
9L'11 S6E VOVl LS80V 60v°0v 000°015°91 000°0¥6°T 000°0LS VT 200¢
onjeA passasse  (spuesnoy) enden 19J199q  uonendog JUSUIUISACL) SONIALIOY SOTIATIOY Ied X [BOSL]
JO Q00°1$ 12d uI) onjeA JEIOY pepuog [e10], Arewrug rejo],  odA1- ssoursng [BIUSUILISAOD)

12 papuog  pajewnsy [eo]

spuog uonesqQ [eIPUILD

SAIVHA TVOSIAINAL LSVT
1939d AddNO4 VLIdVD ddd ANV
SHNYIVA QESSESSV OL L94d FIANOd TV EdNAD 4O OILVY
VINOHV IO MALVMTIILS 40 ALID



"K31D 241 Aq pajos[[0o xB) s3es uonelodsueT 1usd J[ey-oUo o1} JO JTeY ouo o) [enbo onuoaos xe) soyes woxy A[o[os s[qeied sI sjou onuossi oY, (7)

"SJUSWISIE]S [RIOURUIJ SU} O] $310U SY) Ul PUNOJ oq Ued 1qop Surpueisino §,A10) oy) Smpredar sprelo (1)

L80 0LT SI9°1 9v9°1 £6°C 790°1 S10%% 7871 858y 661°19 110C
01 69¢ 0LT'T 9LST 0s°¢ oy 0€6°C 90811 SESry 1¥€°9¢ 0102
S6'1 Lol §v9 7r9°l £6'1 999 099°¢ PSe’s 869t AINY 600T
€l 9C¢ Sov 626 9¢'C ges GS8T 866°L 61SvY L1§°TS 800C
- - - - 191 619 0€LT 80%°c LO6'SY SIE'IS L00T
- - - - SL'1 £69 ST9°C T08°S 96€TY 861°81 900¢
- - - - 00T 60L S0ET 8600 86%°LE 965°cy §00T
- - - - yTe £C8 SIST ST8o1 T6T'LT L11°8€ ¥00T
- - - - 9¢°¢ 618 916 169°6 $58°97 905°9¢ £00T
- - - - 06'¢ 1201 0¥l 08%°6 €€9°97 €11°9¢ 7007
o8e10A0)) 1seI01U] redouirg Xe] so[es a8e1aA0)) 1s91010] redoung onusAdy sosuadxyg SoNUeASY Jed X [Bds1y
uoneuodsueIy, o[qerreay 19N Sumeied(y isse]  Supersd(
pa3pald Amnn
901A13S 193(T 201A30S 19°(]

(7) se10N onuoASy (10T PUE L0OT

spuog anusAdY S00Z PUE TO0Z PUE SAION (THMO) Pieog $90In0say I91e A\ BWOUERO

(spuvsnoyy u1 sivjjop)
SAVHA TVOSIA NAL ISV1
(1) 4OV IIA0D HNNFATY 2D 1d
VINOHVTIO YALVMTILLS 0 ALID

103



0ees

01¢
0'8¢1

61
09
99
€1
oee
0°L9
961

"2IM}[NO PUE UONEBIOAI YIIM papnjout are seokojdus JjoF ‘110z ur SuruuiSog "(1(7 Ul 90URUIPIO A POAJOSSIP Sem KILIOWINY JJo0) o1jqngd I1em[us (7)

8965

0t
S'Le
€LET

(44
§'6
8¢
S1
08¢
¢S
661

[
—
o~

6685 SLI19 07186 17065 S L6S 8¢ $'995
9 S S S [ S Sy
0z 1T $61 ¥4 14 Sz 1T
01¢ SPe 0€ ¢ ¢ 9¢ o<y
1'Z€1 $8¢1 0€1 8LET 9¢1 zel LT1
SI 4 81 61 81 $61 61
Syl L1 87 $TT $'sT 144 1T
s¢ €€ 7 8T 8T sz 8T
ST S1 ¢el £1 €1 (41 [rd!
So¥ 8¢ T LT o 4 8T €7
818 SL'E6 701 9’16 101 86 0'L6
€61 €61 881 $'681 $681 781 8.1
600C 300C 1002 9002 $002 Y007 £00¢
(1) SYVAX TVOSLI ANIN ISV

‘o]qe[reA® A[Ipeal 10U SI £00¢ 03 Joud s1eak 103 ere( (1)
[2l0L

suoneiedQ podiry

(2) Luoymy JjoH orqnd Ie1em[us

suoneredo uoneIURg

suonerado I01eMa)SBM PUER I3JBM ‘OLIOS]
:sonianoe ad4j-ssoursng

oIeJ[om pue yieoH
UOoRNSTUTIIPE s3Iom ofjqnd pue SuuesuiSug
SIOMIS pUB j2211§
UOTIRISTUTUIPE [BIOUBUL]
JUSWUISAOS [eI2UD)
oIMNO puE UOHEBIIOTY
Kioges orqng

:SONIATIOB [BIUSUILIOAOL)

WeIsoIg/uonoung

WVIDOI/NOILONNA A9 STIXOTIANT INFNNIFAOD ALID INTTVAINOT TNIL-TINd

VINOHV IO YALVATILLS 40 ALID

104



Sl St SI S1

I I I I

g g g S

[ I I I
N4 1ot 1°0¢ 6'0C
8 8 8 8

[ I ! !
09 19 19 9
9Ts 1§39 9¢s 0¢ce
091 091 091 091
[44 (44 (44 [44
01 01 01 01
4 YT YT ¥C
14 v % 14

I I I I
1102 010¢ 600¢C 800C

19
0tc

091
{4
4!
I£4

™~
[
N

WVIDOEd/NOILONNA AE SOILSILVLS IdSSV TV.LIdVD
VINOHV IO MAIVMTTILS 40 ALDD

Sl el 11

I 1 I

14 1% ¥

I I I

602 g6l g6l

8 8 8

I I I

€S 1< IS

L6T S6T S6T

091 091 091

¥T T (44

14! 14! y1

¥C I 1T

14 14 14

[ 1 I
900¢ $00C ¥00¢

SYVHA TVOSId NHL LSV'T

0s
§sT

091
[44
4!
1T

0¢
gst

091
(44
14!
1T

suonels Yry
JuB[J 10)BMIISB A
IOJBMIISB M
(3uerd woyy Aeme) s10m0] 988I0)S IoJB A\
ue[d WM
2BM
Uil AX69 JO ST
suoneisqng
syuefd romogd
IDjemalsem ‘Iojem OLos[y
:sanyIAnoR adA3-ssauisng
speusis oiygei],
(soq1wr) s00:g
SIOMOS PUR 10211
38e0I0E - 25IN07) J[OD) SpIsAe]
syred Arunwnios/pooyIoquSN
SLINOY) SIUUS
SPIeY ORIV
2IN}[NO PUB UONIEAIOTY
SuoEIS 211
SUOTE)S 291[0]
Kyozes oqng
ISOINATIOR [BJUSUILISAOL)

BIS0I/uoToUng

105



0 96 ¥6 (44 123 L61 01T 0lc LIT £0T porue[d sqnuys pue saa1],

9L0°1 SS0°1 €L€ oL 06t €65 768 ¥09 009 709 3525 P22 pue sseld ySi
PLS'S SLEY ULy £91°¢ $65°8 ¥8S°L 00Fy 9€9°¢ SHO°S 9Ly suooadsul JUSWSIIOFUD 3P0
dIej[om pue yi[eay
¥SLE 1zL'e 68L°C 619°¢ 88€°¢ $80°c 989°¢ LT 0L0°¢ 90%°¢ pase[dwos s1opio qof 199
S0¢ ILT 9b¢ ovE £7¢ €67 68z €8T 082 8LC pourejurB S3[OIYSA
90¥°c £96°C 089°T LY0'E 8LY'E P6¥°¢ 0€LE L1TT 958°1 wl ponssi SJULID]
08 6¢ 69 $6 orl 102 991 14! LTI 121 pamataas symowdofaaag
uonensturwpe syom osrqad pue SuLeeuiSug
PILT LOT'1 91°1 PES 8SL 006 006 ¥16 9€9 ok ('sp£ o) juswmsoeydal 91210U0)
6T 6¢ 3 €T (4 YL SLY LO1 002 8¢l (s31001q) Jue[ess ALm(g
91T L1T £yl S9L°01 (44 89 79 65 |72 €TL'8 (%) (xpo1q) yur[ess joRI)
s LS 9bE 651 S0g 0LT osv 6E¥ 8SH ok spew susig
SSL'8 9L €01 8 96 68 0s1 24! 0L 8¢€T (¢) Surdiys Jo syd0[g
$I9MI$ PUR J2215
S91°8 SI8L 687°6 81£°01 800°01 000°T1 000°T1 978°01 AR £11°01 9522 11002 [edIUNA
$6E°1 1$°1 P6L°1 60L°1 809°1 T06°1 LTH'E P8 LOT'6 108°01 PaMdIASI STOIISINbaY
943 ’TY 8¢ 8¢ [543 (1134 8Ly 9% 8 LEY passa001d s)ustIpUSIIR/SUOISIALI 105png
SP6'E 78¢€°€ 888°C €96°C €TIY 9Ty $66°S L8E°01 861°01 108°01 S3aYd s[qeAed s)unoooe pajessuss seindwo)
UOIJRSTUIUIPE [BIOUBUL]
se 43 9¢ s¢ <9 " 1L a4 LE 6T pa)jeIp sa0ueUIPI)
S8LT 6THT +80°C LYST 8681 T ¥29°1 L90T €TET 910°C 11 4q sjjed aqnonMsopdioy
s 39% 1 (137 LOY 11y 8l €0V Siv 96¢ 1 4q s1omnduos-oxoru papoddng
JUSUILIDAOS [RISURD)
ObE'69t  €P0°0LE  E€VTHIE 1CHove T0S‘6vE 866°TLE  8STTSE 969°€9¢ 121°8%¢ ok s[eLjew ATeIqi[ JO UOIB[NIIID [B10],
611°001 56S5°L6 61T°56 ¥L9°16 ok o 65068 98756 6L1°S6 0v8°s6 Krexqy ur sawmjop
0 91§ PL61 06y 6696 $SSST ¥8T°LI 005°0T (YANIT4 £76°0T (7) sepu snq gy
LYT'6T LLS'ST SISYT 880°ST LIL'ST 81T°1¢ SEL'ST 6£€°8T 897°1¢ $99°¢¢ J108 Jo spunox - 25102 J]03 SpIsaxe]
658°C1 6SL91 08Z°S1 95081 760°81 TeLl 8P1°67 000°TC 1L0°0T 810°CT suossiupe [ood Sururuimg
0029 0009 0009 0009 9€7°T 8L6C L4 001°1 988 ¥69 syuedionied s3ry BN
o ¥€ w 0L 09 L9 €L 79 LS 89 2oUBpUINE dTRI0AR AJIEp I2JUS)) 101U
90°s SOLY 0€£0°9 96T°T 06v°L £0£%9 ¥S1°9 8€9°G PEL'S £L0° sjuedronred ureisoig
SEL'S £6Y'L 9678 orTIL 75811 TES°8 6TTCl 056 056 s¢6 (1) pamows sar0y
2IMj{Nd puR UOHBIIOTY
89Ty 6£6°¢ 970 YLS'E 1L6°€ Tis’e 98%°¢ 705°¢ 105°c 0LV'E 9DIAISS 10J S[[€D OUB[NqUIY
876°1 243 0Ts°1 L1 T€9°1 LIS 06€°T €91°1 789°1 FOL1 SDIAIDS 10§ S[[Bd 811
0£S°C PEPT 80T°C YEY'T 8€L €0y [§8A4 1$6C L09T 656'C 2MgfjoM [BWIUY Aq Po[puEY S[EWIUY
€897 9EITY gL'y 018°cE 1+8°6€ L69YY 1Lty T6°1Y 169°6¢ $01°TH 9D1AI8S 10§ S[[ED 9010
9L0°LT €691 789°¢1 10911 T99°€T 0001 L96°T1 SH9°01 191°01 $16°9 sjoxd[) Suryied
891°¢ 310 961y 010°S SLOS 00L°S 129°s T8T9 69L°S 666°S SUOLEID eI,
Kyayes otqng

ISONIAIIOR [BIUSTIUISAOCL)

110T 010¢C 600C 800¢ L00T 900C <00T 00T

IeIS0T/aoToung

o
[=
o~
o
foml
ot
o

SYVHA TVOSId NAL ISVT
INVEDOU/NOILONNA A9 SYOLVIIANI ONILVIHO
VIWOHVTIO “YILVMTILLS 40 ALID

106



667
780°811

€0v'l
£1L'61

8791
87T
006
8L5°91
80Z°0T

110

434
0TIl

T00‘1
986°81

8v0°T
8€£°T
$8
99L°91
8€€°0T

010T

9L6°S
I71°0€1

SETT
T09°61

LS6°1
L9S°T
9Ll
#5991
085°0C

600C

ok
01€'8T1

£81°1
000°1T

S€0°T
¥09°C
TLT
00Z°91
$09°61

o]
[
o

679
621901

8611
¥88°TC

ov6‘l
*ok
18T
PLTST
8¢E 3l

T~
[
(=
(§

‘papujour a1 siedsl oUl] 991A19S PUE UIBW 19JeM [)oq ‘1107 Ul SutuuiSeqg "A[uo siredsl urewr 10)em sIpN[OUL 310Z-200T (S)

Ti6's
8TT'LO1

196
700°0T

LLTT
6L0°¢
6T
TE6p1
00861

O
<
<
o

00T U pue 00z Ut "SqJ Ut painseatt (i)
110T Ut "y Ul pamsesw (g)
010Z yorep pepue wreioxd snq rurw (7)

‘$3UIMOT JO JOqUUNU SIWH PIMOUL $IIIE 0) GOOT 1894 [B9SY UI PoMOU SIIOR JO aInseaw pasueyo ()

L9T°S SP6y L68Y
POV LL 8TEIL 98¢°06
096 050°1 62l
€15°81 TT8°L1 SLLLT
860C LT0°T €LIT
89LC 156°T 988°C
9Z1 1 681
L90'%1 60L°€1 LEEEL
grII'sl $SL°81 08%°81
$00C 00¢ £00C
(panunuoo)
SYVHA TVISIA NAL ISV

00§
68L201

VIN
1€1°61

LEET
£97°T
8¢l
€P6°Tl
T65°LL

J

o
<
Sl

INVIDOYd/NOLLONNA A9 SYOLVOIANI ONLLVIHdO
VIWOHV IO “YAIVMTILLS 40 ALID

J]gE|IBABUN,,

(uowr 3ae) suonend)
suoneradg podiry
SUOISSIWPY
suonjerado 191u9)) Ajrununuo)
(suo)) payney s)sem prex
(suo3) aGesn jjypue]
suonerado uornejues
(suoqes uor[[iur) pajeal) afemag
(suo[[eS uol[[iu1) parean 1em
() siredaxoury 1012 M
SUOIISULOD IAJB A
SUOIUUO0I JLIIDS[H
suone1ddo 19)eMa)SeM PUB Iajem OLId[g
:son1anoe 2dA)-ssoursng

107



1107 Iequieoa(] ur juejd SULIMOBINUBL [B20] 9} PISO[D JOSIIDISA AMoIolA (7)

‘o[qe[reAe A[ipeas jou s pouod su jey) Joj siehojduue [rea1 I0] sunod sokojduro ‘oFe s1esk ouru ssoursnq ur o1om siokojduwo ssat) ySnowiry (1)

%1 6 SI¢
%S (4 056
%1 01 (44
%I 8 09T
%1 8S1
%I SLT
%< 9 SLE
%1 L SLT
%€ S €IS
%V € €0L
%¢ 14 SSY
%S¢ I €08

JOSWAG AUy Joeyg SeokoTdwy

A rero Jo

a8ruoorog
08y sIes§ SN

6
0C1
9¢1
8¢l
961
91
0
0
%1 cel
%1 SLT
%l 01 81
%I 6 114
%1 8 ove
%I L 0LT
%T 9 8%
%C S 1239
%€ ¥ 8¥s
St € 9L
%t [4 698
%I1¢ I 6189
JmwAoTduIg Sueyg (LX) (ehins|

An) reo jo
a3eiua0Iag

IB3 X Juaiim)

SYFAOTINH TVAIONIAd

OOV SYVHA ININ ANV dVHA INFIIND

VIWOHVTIO YALVMTIILS 40 ALID

SN Jerem[Ing

10ue)) A30[0uN0s ], UBIPLIS]A
SOTUOLO9[ JSTIUOL]

SOMO']

se1dojouyos |, X DI/ ou] ‘SOIpEUWION
SuneyIey 2nouQ

SIBYIO

SqeT] 9ATIBOI)

(7) IosmupIeIA AmodIoln
seLysnpuy plIo A\ SUOLSULIY
plepuel§ [eUoniEN

OIpNY I93Or3/SUSISa(T IOIEMIIIS
Sued [BUCHEN] Io1M[[IS
somyde1ny pend)/pIop 1093geng)
yoa] Ieare] o 1do(g 21818 SO
(1) seruedwo)) e[ uelg
11eMITES Jo A1)

(1) MeN-Tem

S[O0Y3S olqnd Jeiem{[uS
I0JuR)) [BSIPON IoIBMI[TIS
AJISIOATUN) 91e1S BWOYRDO

Iokojdwuyg

108



Aunoy) suked 10J s1 pue uoisstuuo)) juswiopdury ewoyepio £q pepiroid ayer juswkordutsun (S)

10jus)) A50[0Ulos | UBIPLISIA] 1B SIUSpPNIS awin-J[ey/[|n] pue
‘101eM[[11S-085][0)) PWOURRD WSYLION “IS1BM[IS-ANSISATU] S)BIS BUWIOURD( I8 JUSW][OIUS SSPNIOUL JUSWI][OIUS AIBPUOdas-1SOJ
007 Ul SutuuiSaq syuepnis aW-[[1 Y-21d SPN[OUL PUR Pajesipul Ieak [eosy oU3 SUIMO][O] A[SIRIDSUNUI I2)SSWRS [[e] oy} J0J a1t saInSiy juawpjoruy (+)

Iop[o 30 s1eak G7 suosiad 250U} 0} SIDJAI JUSWUIEYNE UOHRONPY
neaing snsud)) 'S’ £q pepraoid juswruie)e [eUOREONPS pue 95y uelpsA (€)

‘90JouIo)) Jo Jusunieda(g "S ) Aq popiracid sajewnss swoour [euosiad ooz YSnoIy 9o0T
)0T - 0007 SYSIN Pue sonuno)) 10J sWoou] [eUosiad [eI0], "oIowwo)) Jo jusunteda(] rwoyepR|Q Aq papiaoid sajeuinsas swooul [euosied o0z YSnomy 700z (7)

‘neaing snsusy) () Y1 Aq a5us[[eyd reWIS? S,A10) 93 Jo souridaooe ay) sjosfjal arewunss uonendod 0T
‘neaing susua)) "§'ry oyl Aq oSusjieyo 9reWInsd S,A1) 911 Jo sourldoooe oy sjoa[yar sjewnse uonendod /007

‘neaIng snsus) 'S’ 2y pue wowdopasg Aununuo) jo jueuntedsq Iorem[ug Jo A sy £q papraocid sejewnss wonendod (1)

uonesiqnd Jo ouw 18 S[qR[IBAR 10U BIB(T s

%6°S TL9'YT 096°S xx *x *k 110T
%8'S 810y 08L°S %997 %S°C6 6'tC *% ok 889°Sy 0107
%¢€9 61L°€T 965°S 0€0°'6T SOSYIET €S9°LY 600¢
%e' ¥ P9S°€T 68¥°S 067°6C £60°90€°C 9L6°0Y 8007
%8'¥ 98%°€C 09v'S 050°LT 1S¥°201°C €8¢y L00T
%0°S 8VL°ET 095°¢ 116%C 6£1°576°1 vLY'SY 900T
%6'¢ 965°1C 6L¥°S 996°€T €€6°6SLT 061y $007
%ET 9LETT 0vy's 66£°€T 169°¢29°1 0Te' Iy 00T
%9T T67°TT 9¢€’s 891°CT 8L9'795°1 SELOY £00T
%81 €96°12 €16°S 868°1Z 9IL9IS T 607°0v 00T
(s) oy (%) weurfjorug () wourorug  YSIY 1o 20132p Ioysy 10 (¢)o8y uepojy owoou] [euosizd (7)) (smepop (1) voneindog Tes X [BosL
wowloduouny  A1BpU099s-1504 [00YaS Z1-31 sJo[ayoeq  ayenpeIs [00YOS ende) 1od Jo spuesnot ur)
ofejusored  -ydiy ofvjuonlng WOdU] [BUOSIDJ
(€) Sujooypg

JO SIBS X UI [2A2] UOnEOnpy

SYVHA TVOSId NHL LSVT
SOILSILV.LS DINONODH ANV DIHdVIDONWEd
VINOHVTIO MALVMTIILS 40 ALID

109



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS
AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

June 30, 2011



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES:

Reports related to financial statements of the reporting entity
Required by GAO Government Auditing Standards:

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on An Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Reports related to Federal Assistance Programs Required by OMB Circular A-133:
Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with the Requirements that Could
Have a Direct and Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal
Control over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

PAGE



| Arledge

& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the
City of Stillwater, Oklahoma

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Stillwater, Oklahoma (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011,
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 1, 2011. We did not audit the Stillwater Medical Center Authority which the City reports as a
discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose
report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it related to the amounts included for
the Stillwater Medical Center Authority, is based on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as
a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material

weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PR st s e e P A B S T T e S g e S A I R € D R RS L e LA e R N B ]
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the governing body, management, and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

Ootidye < bosastn , C
Edmond, Oklahoma
December 1, 2011



| Arledge

& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the
City of Stillwater, Oklahoma

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Stillwater, Oklahoma (the "City") with the types of

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City's major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The City's major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its
major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Qur
audit does not provide a legal determination of the City's compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended

June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a

309 N. Bryant Ave. - Edmond, OK 73034 - 405.348.0615 - Fax 405.348.0931 - www.jmacpas.com
Member of AICPA and OSCPA



reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditure of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thereon
dated December 1, 2011, which contained unqualified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit
was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial statements as a whole. The
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by
OMB Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, the City Council, management,
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used
by anyone other than these specified parties.

(Zuu(ﬁtaéc a';f &/M@%Wi Pl

Edmond, Oklahoma
December 1, 2011



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

Federal
C.F.D.A Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Title Number Grant Number Expenditures
U.8. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 16,327
Pass-through from Oklahoma State Bureau of Investigation
Forensic Recovery of Evidence - Internet Crimes Against Children 16.543 2009 ICAC Grant 12,249
Total U.S. Department of Justice 28,576
U. 8. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:
Airport Improvement Program 20.106 3-40-0090-019-2010 31,127
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 31,127
U. 8. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Pass-through from Oklahoma Department of Emergency Management:
Fire Management Assistance Grant 97.046 EMW-2009-FO-01232 438,584
Emergency Management Performance Grant 97.042 17,500
Pass-through from Oklahoma Office of Homeland Security
Fire Management Assistance Grant 97.046 10,800
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 466,884
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Pass-through from Oklahoma Housing Finance Agency:
Home Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 1330 HOME 10 55,939
Pass-through from Oklahoma Department of Commerce:
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 14.228 13435 CDBG 08 74,571
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 14.228 13902 CDBG 09 58,756
Emergency Shelter Grant 14.231 14204 ESG 2010 26,627
Total U.S, Department of Housing and Urban Development 215,893
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
Pass-through from Oklahoma Water Resources Board:
ARRA - Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66.468 876,551
Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds 66,468 1,270,356
Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 401,358
Total Environmental Protection Agency 2,548 465
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY
ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant 81.128 DE-EE0001847 154,240
Total U.S. Department of Energy 154,240
TOTAL FEDERAL AWARDS 3,445,185

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL EXPENDITURES:

NOTE A - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the City of Stillwater and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,

Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations . Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts

presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2011

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X ____none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Reportable condition(s) identified
not considered to be material weakness(es)? ves X ___none reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
OMB Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? yes X _no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
97.046 Fire Management Assistance Grant
81.128 ARRA-Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant
66.468 ARRA-Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds
Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs: $_ 300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X_yes no



CITY OF STILLWATER, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2011

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Compliance Findings

None

Internal Control Findings

None
SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Compliance Findings

None

Internal Control Findings

None
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